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March 18,2010 

To the Honorable Mayor, 
Members of the City Council, 

City of Rockwall 
gte CYVtW .9TauZO/b 

and the Citizens of the City of Rockwall, Texas: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Rockwall for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2009, is hereby submitted in accordance with Section 7.18 of the City 
Charter. The financial statements are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a 
firm of licensed certified public accountants. 

Management assumes full responsibility for both the completeness and reliability of all of the 
information presented in this report. Fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests 
with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all 
material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and 
results of operations of the various funds in the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the 
reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activities have been included. 

To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City of 
Rockwall has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to 
protect the government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable 
information for the preparation of the City of Rockwall's financial statements in conformity with 
GAAP. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 

(I) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and 
(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Rockwall's 
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather 
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As 
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is 
complete and reliable in all material respects. The internal control structure is subject to periodic 
evaluation by City management. 

The City of Rockwall's financial statements have been audited by Rutledge, Crain & Company, 
PC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to 
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Rockwall for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2009, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit 
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involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent 
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an 
unqualified opinion that the City of Rockwall 's financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2009, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's 
report is presented as the first component of the fmancial section of this report . 

Management's di scussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's 
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the financial statements as 
required by GAAP. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in 
conjunction with it. 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

The City of Rockwall, Texas, county seat of Rockwall County, Texas was incorporated in 1874. 
Its name is derived from an underground rock wall discovered in 1854. The unusual rock 
formations are found throughout the county. The City is located on the eastern shore of Lake Ray 
Hubbard, 22 miles east of downtown Dallas on Interstate Highway 30. The DallaslFort Worth 
area is recognized as one of the top growth areas in the country. The DallaslFort Worth 
International Airport and Love Field in Dallas meet the air transportation needs of the region. 

The City currently has a land area of approximately 28.09 square miles and an estimated 
population of32,103 . 

The City of Rockwall adopted a home rule charter in 1985 which established a council-manager 
form of government. Charter amendments have been adopted as recently as 2005 . Policymaking 
and legislative authority is vested in the City Council, which consists of a Mayor and six Council 
Members, all elected at large. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and 
ordinances of the City Council, overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City and for 
appointing the heads of the various departments. The mayor and six council members are elected 
to two year staggered term s. The government is empowered to levy a property tax on both real 
and personal property located within its boundaries. The government also has the power by state 
statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which is done periodically when deemed 
appropriate by the City Council. 

The City of Rockwall provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; the 
construction and maintenance of streets and other infrastructure; planning and zoning, parks and 
recreational activities and general administrative services. Additionally, the City provides water 
and sewer services as an enterprise function. 

Discretely presented component units are legally separate entities and are not part of the primary 
government's operations. The City of Rockwall is financially accountable for its component 
units. Accordingly, the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) and Rockwall 
Technology Park Association are included in these financial statements and are explained in more 
detail in Note I of the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when considered from 
the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Rockwall operates. 

Local Economy 

The City of Rockwall is situated in the Dallas/Fort Worth Consolidated Metropolitan Statistical 
Area. With its concentration of commercial and retail development, the City of Rockwall has 
long drawn shoppers from surrounding areas. In spite of the down economy throughout the 
nation, Rockwall saw some new businesses open in 2009. The city's revenues were flat where 
they may otherwise have fallen ifnot for the new businesses which are described below. The city 
has a varied tax base including a mix of residential, commercial and light industrial properties. 
Total property values rose by 4.06%. The most recent five-year average is 6.75% per annum. 
The City's largest taxpayers include a number of commercial developments. Table 12 in the 
Statistical Section provides further information on the principal taxpayers. The Rockwall 
Economic Development Corporation continues to market Rockwall and assist companies looking 
to locate their business in the City. The year's highlights included: 

• Costco Corporation completed construction on a Costco Wholesale store in Rockwall. The 
149,000 square foot store enhanced Rockwall's role as a regional shopping destination. 

• Presbyterian Hospital of Rockwall having opened their acute care facility in December 2008, 
completed construction of approximately 40,000 square feet of medical office space in the 
adjacent area in 2009. Other similarly sized private medical offices were constructed 
during the year. 

• Shenaniganz, calling itself an "eater-tainment destination opened in late in 2008 and includes 
bowling, laser tag, an arcade, rock climbing, go carts and restaurant areas. 

• Downtown Rockwall benefited from the attention garnered as Rockwall was named a Texas 
Main Street City in October 2008. The program officially kicked off with a visit by the 
First Lady of Texas in spring 2009. A number of new restaurants including Restaurant 
Ava, Bin303, EI Cayote Rojo and Texas Roast joined the downtown area. Zanata's 
Restaurant doubled their seating area. 

• Ground was broken for the Shops at Stone Creek and their anchor tenant, Tom Thumb. The 
approximately 59,000 square foot " lifestyle" format store is expected to open in May 2010. 
The store is expected to draw customers from surrounding towns as well. More than 
15,000 square feet of retail space adjoins the store with out-parcels available. 

• Half Price Books will join the retail mix in April 2010, opening a location in the Rockwall 
Crossing shopping center. This announcement allowed the City to meet a long standing 
goal of a book store opening in the City. 

• The City completed the annexation process, after three years of planning, for the Lake 
Rockwall Estates area. This area includes over 3,000 residents who will now receive city 
services. In anticipation of this annexation, the City conducted studies and worked with 
residents to address long standing needs and plan for improvements to the area in the near 
and long-term. 
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Long-tenn Planning 

The City Council and staff recognize the need for long-range planning. It is the goal of the City 
government to provide responsible leadership, services, and infrastructure to achieve a safe 
environment and provide for a high quality oflife. 

Financial Policies 

The City Council adopted financial policies in 2001 which have guided the City allowing us to 
build a strong fund balance and reinforcing the need to budget conservatively for both revenues 
and expenditures. The general fund reserve policy was reviewed and updated in 2009. The 
policy states the City should maintain no less than 3 months of reserves and will allow reserves in 
excess of 3.5 months of recurring operating expenditures to be transferred to a capital projects 
fund to be used to fund future projects. The City has consistently maintained reserves at or above 
this level for many years. This allows the City to respond to emergencies or downturns while not 
overburdening the taxpayers. Reserves over the 3.5 month level will be available to fund capital 
projects in coming years. 

Planning Projects 

Having identified the downtown area as a critical component of our long range plan, the City 
working with business and community leaders coordinated an effort to be named a Texas Main 
Street City and is pursuing the planning and design opportunities this program provides. 

The City worked with a consulting firm to prepare an extensive conceptual plan for Planned 
Development 32 (PD32) which encompasses 60 acres of undeveloped land inside the City's tax 
increment financing zone and adjacent to the Harbor development. The city recognizes the 
importance of having the conceptual plan ready when the economy improves. The area is 
expected to include an expansion of the mixed-use concept with retail, restaurants, office and 
residential spaces. 

The city accepted the report from a street condition study to better evaluate the priorities for 
needed street repairs . The study results will be employed as the City develops future maintenance 
budgets and capital improvement programs. 

The Rockwall Economic Development Corporation refined their vision in their Destination 2020 
plan in 2008. This comprehensive document includes demographics, target industries, marketing 
strategies, competition, site selection criteria, and alliances among its parameters. The REDC 
hired a Marketing Manager in 2009 to better position them to attract and retain industry. 

Strategic Planning 

Organizationally, the City uses the Balanced Scorecard Methodology for strategic planning. Bi­
annually the City conducts a Citizen Satisfaction Survey to document our progress meeting the 
needs of our citizens. The City employs the C3 methodology of "Customer Centered Culture" 
which encourages cross department teams to follow a proven course of data compilation and 
actions that allow the teams to develop product and process improvements. C3 recognizes that 
the services we provide are ultimately comprised of a number of products and processes and 
those must be designed to meet our customer's needs, not what we perceive are their needs. Two 
project teams presented their reports to Council in 2009 and many of their suggested 
improvements have been implemented, with more teams starting in late 2009. 
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Future Development 

Transportation 

The City has nearly completed the construction of the 205 Bypass roadway project which is 
officially named "John King Boulevard" in honor of our late council member. The road includes 
one railroad crossing which is expected to be completed in spring 2010. Texas Department of 
Transportation has begun work on the overpass which will connect the northern and southern 
roadways and allow additional access to 1-30. It is expected to be completed mid 2012. TxDot 
will complete work on the widening of SH205 (Goliad Street) through the City in early 2010. 
The construction of FM740 through southern Rockwall will commence in 20 I 0 also. City 
projects under construction in 20 I 0 will include the reconstruction of Airport Road, a much 
traveled east-west roadway which will allow better access to John King Boulevard and the 
widening of a section ofFM549. 

The City is a member of a County-wide Consortium which allows County government officials to 
work with officials of each of the seven cities in the county to further transportation planning 
efforts. The Consortium meets monthly to discuss funding alternatives for the County's 
transportation needs, which also involve planning and state participation. The County bond 
initiative which met with positive voter approval allows funding for the advance planning and 
design of 5 major roadway projects. This will allow those projects to be ready to commence as 
soon as state funding is allocated for construction. 

Medical Services 

Developments in the Horizon Road area have focused on medical services. With the opening of 
Presbyterian Hospital of Rockwall in 2008, acute care is available in the City. Several new 
medical buildings with Doctor's suites joined state of the art out-patient diagnostic imaging 
facilities in the past two years. Ancillary medical office buildings and long term care facilities 
are planned for near term development. This corridor has developed into a regional medical 
destination. Arbor House Assisted Living Center opened in 

Retail I Entertainment 

"The Harbor" public improvements, situated on the shores of Lake Ray Hubbard at 1-30, were 
completed in 2007. A public/private partnership provided opportunities for new retailers in the 
Bella Harbor development as well as public open space and a full-service Hilton Hotel and 
Conference Center. A number of conferences have used the facilities with many more scheduled 
for 2010. The development has become a regional entertainment destination. 

In conjunction with the private development, the City established a tax increment financing (TIF) 
zone in an approximately 103 acre tract which allowed the financing and development of public 
open space to complement the development and allow citizens access to the Lake Ray Hubbard 
shore line. The City partnered with Rockwall County, and the Rockwall Economic Development 
Corporation to establish the TIF to finance the public projects. 
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The City' s Concert on the Lake Series managed by the City' s Recreation Department draws 
approximately 5,000 attendees each Thursday evening for a free concert. The series was 
extended to 22 weeks in 2009. Surveys conducted during the events gathered data regarding the 
distance from which visitors traveled and approximate retail and restaurant dollars ' expended 
while here. 

Founder' s Day on the Downtown Square draws visitors to shop merchant's wares, see artist's 
exh ibits, learn about city departments and enjoy free concerts all day. The event culminates with 
a concert by a nationally recognized artist, also free to all who attend. 

A Farmer' s Market brings visitors downtown weeks during the year. In 2010 the City will be 
adding an Art Fair each month. The first annual "Rib Rub" was held in fall 2009. The Main 
Street Advisory Board and "Friends of Downtown Rockwall", citizen volunteer group, are 
working to plan special events downtown. 

Facilities 

Construction was completed on Fire Stations 3 and 4, approved by voters in 2005. The stations 
were dedicated to two long time vo lunteer firefighters, Mr. Bennie Tanner and Mr. Paul Merritt 
respectively. With the addition of these stations the City continued the transition to a 
combination paid/volunteer department by adding several fully paid shift positions. 

The Rockwall Police Community Services Office was rededicated in memory of long time 
vo lunteer and supporter John Fitzwater Sr. 

Utilities 

The water and sewer rates which were increased in 2009 are being reviewed and staff will be 
recommending a rate increase for early 20 I O. The City purchases treated water as a founding 
member city of the North Texas Municipal Water District. Construction is ongoing for the 
Squabble Creek sewer system which will connect to the regional sewer interceptor system. A 
number of main extension projects are being undertaken to provide water and sewer service to 
annexed areas of the City. 

The City 's water system was recognized with the Texas Commiss ion on Environmental Quality's 
"Superior" rating in 2008. 

Debt Administration: Two ratios traditionally used to analyze the debt structure of municipalities 
are presented below. Revenue debt has been excluded since system charges are used to retire the 
debt. 

Outstanding General Obligation Debt at 9-30-09(net of Debt Service) 
Estimated Population 
G.O. Debt Per Capita 
Net G.O. Debt per Assessed Value 
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$107,527,586 
32, I 03 
$3,349 
3.57% 



The City seeks a bond rating update as new debt is issued. The current ratings are shown below: 

General Obligation 
Standard & Poor's Rating Group AA-
Moody's Investor Service Inc. Al 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Awards: 

Revenue 
A-
A2 

Sales Tax(REDC) 
A-
A2 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. The 
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the 
highest standards for preparation of state and local government fmancial reports. In order to be 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. 
This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and app licable legal 
requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year on ly. The City has received a 
Certificate of Achievement for each of the last nineteen consecutive fiscal years. We believe our 
current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements and 
we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

Acknowledgement: 

The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was made possible 
by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Finance Department. Each member of the 
department has our sincere appreciation for the contributions made in the preparation of this 
report. 

In closing, without the leadership and support of the governing body of the City, preparation of 
this report wou ld not have been possible. 
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To the City Council 
City of Rockwall , Texas 

RUTLEDGE CRAIN & COMPANY, PC 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

2401 Garden Park Courl. Suite B 
Arlington, Texas 76013 

Independent Auditors' Report on Financial Statements 

We have audiled the accompanying financial slalemenls olthe governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information olthe 
City of Rockwall , Texas as of and for the year ended September 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents, These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of 
Rockwall, Texas' management. Our responsibil ity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance wrth auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
Those standards require that we plan and periorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statemenls are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting Ihe 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statemenls referred to above present fairly, in all malerial respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregale discretely presented component units, 
each major fund, and Ihe aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Rockwall , Texas as of September 30, 2009, 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 

The Managements Discussion and Analysis identified as Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted 
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplemental 
information. However I we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was periormed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statemenls which collectively comprise 
the Crty of Rockwall, Texas' basic financial statements, The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor 
fund financial statements, schedules, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 
a required part olthe basic financial statements, The combining and individual non major fund financial statements and 
schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
in our opinion, are fai rly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole , The 
introductory section and the statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
01 the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them, 

~~f'~n)r<-
March 18, 2009 

Metro (817) 265-9989 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The discussion and analysis of the City of Rockwall's financial perfonnance provides an overview 
and analysis of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. Please 
read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements, which follow thi s section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The City's total net assets were $170,779,142 at September 30, 2009. 

• During the year, the City 's expenses were $12,217,616 less than the $48,117,714 generated in 
taxes and other revenues for governmental activities. 

• The assets of the City of Rockwall attributable to governmental activities exceeded its 
liabilities at the close of the fi scal year ending September 30, 2009 by $103,629,886 (net 
assets). Of this amount $12,955,777 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the 
govel11ment's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• At the end of this fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $8,293,107 or 
approximately 39.90 percent of the total general fund expenditures and transfers out. 

• The City's total outstanding bonds and certificates of obligation (excluding enterprise and 
component unit debt) increased by $14,624,460 during fi scal year 2009. More detailed 
infoffilation is given in the notes section. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Figure A~l, Required Components of the 

City's Annual Financial Report 

, 

This annual report consists of three parts-management's 
discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial 
statements, and required supplementary infonnation . The 
basic financial statements include two kinds of statements 
presenting different views of the City: 

~ ~ 

The first two statements are government-wide financial 
statements that provide both long-tenn and short-tenn 
infonnation about the City' s overall financial status. 

The remaining statements are fund financial statements 
that focus on individual parts of the govenunent, 
reporting the City's operations in more detail than the 
government-wide statements. 

The governmental fund statements tell how general 
government services were financed in the short-tenn as 
well as what remains for future spending. 

Proprietary fund statements offer short-tenn and long­
tenn financial infonnation about the activities the 
government operates like businesses. 

~'. Basic Required 

'DiWUJ .... Financial Supplementary 

ad Statements Information 

J'1~ 

-

-- -
,. - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

- -" 
, 

,..- - - -~ --

-~- -- --- , 

GoVernmenl-Wide ! 

I 
! 1t.tc4 Fund , 

Financial 

I 
Financial I 14m. 

Statements Statements 

I '1iHMd4t , 
I S~...t4 , ! I , 

Fiduciary fund stalements provide infonnation about the 
financial relationships in which the City acts solely as a 
trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the 
resources in question belong. Summary <:=====~> Detail 
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The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the infonllation in the financial 
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required 
supplementary infonnation that further explains and supports the infonnation in the financial 
statements. Figure A-I shows how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and related to 
one another. 

Figure A-2. Major Features of the City of Rockwall's Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

. J)y£.qL~~~!~~.fll.l!~_ .. _L9_~.~~~.~_~~!!.~:"~tq~ .. _ .. _ .. _ .. _ 
! Entire Ci ty' government 

Scope 

R, quir" ,1 tWllnd al 
.\1(1/(l1Jh 111 \ 

Accounting basis 
and measurement 
focus 

7)Jh' "J/ 
(L\,"!1'1 Uuhliill 

;""wmlll /lln 

Type oJ 
inj/ow/outflow 
informalion 

(except fiduciary funds) 
and the City'S componen t 
units 
• ~l.lh· I1l \"·1I 1 \1 1" Ih .'( ;,l ." ,,'I:. 

'f ~i;li·~ ; l h.:;{i ·nl .,,,·i h· i il~ !> 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

All a:oi~h alld l i ahiiitic~ , 

h-Ilh Iill'llH:ini and ~'ctl~ il1n. 
~hHrI-h:1 111 illld le ng-fclilll 

I All revenues and expenses 
. during year, regardless of 

when cash is received or 
paid 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

Fund Statements 
J!_~~~!~.m~.~~.~J. .~.t:tE.~~_ ._ .. _ .. _ .. _ .. _ .. _ .. _ .. _ .. _ .. )~!.~P.lj~J~!t .f..'!~.~_~ . _ .. _." _"_,, 
Activities of the City that are not ' Activities the City operates 
proprietary or fiduciary, such as police, simi lar to private business. 
fire and parks 

• 13(1)"llh' ~lh.·C I 

• !',t.lI\:nWIIT ';'1" r . ~ ~'I IU~' : '''~' ' l''':II'JI1'II'':~ i:. 
(.'hul11;\': :-' ill tUlul h •• l.mn.'-

• ~t.lh:m": lJ l ot r \'\ ~' 11Ih.: , 

l' 1'1\.'1 1'0"'.. &. '-Ih.tIIl! '.. in 
~" t.un.,lltel .1 .... , ,, • • ... 

• ~1. t1 ..:ment cH l' .1~h I1tm\'1 

Modified accrual accounting and current ; Accrual accounting and 
financial resources focus ! economic resources focus 

Onl~ " .. ~c'" \.''''' IX'':I,,'\J hI h~' u, t:J lIll ulld 
liahi litil'" Ihat ,:.II1H,' du~' dlll m~ Ih ... ~tJ,n 
t)r ~klll tl l..: r..:ah\.' I, lUI \. .l IW.J1 ..... ,c:h 
1llciull ... d 

All a"'~l,;b lind li uhIlilir:!. 
h.llh tinmWUlI ,til t! ~allJl,,1. 

.. hc1rt·h.'n n dnu Il llI~-h: r111 

Revenues for which cash IS received All revenues and expenses 
during or soon after the end of the year; : during year, regardless of 
expenditures when goods or services ! when cash is received or 
have been received and paymenl is due i paid 
during the year or soon thereafter 

The govemment-wide statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City of 
Rockwall' s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. 

The statement oj net assets presents information on all of the city of Rockwall 's assets and liabilities, 
with the difference between the two reported as lIet assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the finan cial position of the City of Rockwall is 
improving or deteriorating. The statement of net assel, combines and consolidates govenunental 
funds current financial resources (short-tenn spendable resources) with capital assets and long-tenn 
obligations. Other non-financial factors should also be taken into consideration, such as changes in 
the City'S property tax base and the condition of the City's infrastructure, to assess the overall health 
or financial condition of the City. 

The statemellt oj activities presents infonnation showing how the City's net assets changed during the 
most recent fi scal year. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account 
regardless of when cash is recei ved or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this 
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods; for example 
uncollected laxes and eamed but unused vacation leave. Both the statement of net assets and the 
statement of activities are prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting. 
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In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into three kinds of 
activities: 

Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including 
administration, police, fire, planning and zoning, finance, parks and recreation, luunicipal court and 
engineering. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise fees and charges for services provide funds for 
most of the activities. 

Business-type activities - The City charges fees to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of 
certain services it provides. The City'S water and sewer system is reported here. 

Component Units - The City of Rockwall (the primary govenunent) includes two discretely presented 
component units. The City's 4A Sales Tax Corporation known as the Rockwall Economic 
Development Corporation and the Rockwall Technology Park Association. Although legally separate, 
The City of Rockwall is fi nancially accountable for these component units. The City Council appoints 
the component unit 's Board of Directors, sets the budget and approves any debt issuance. 

The govemment-wide financial statements can be found on pages 33-35 of this report. 

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financi al statements provide more detailed infonnation about the City' s most significant 
funds-not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the City uses to keep track of specific 
sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. Some funds are required by State law and by 
bond covenants. However, the City establishes other funds to control and manage money for 
particular purposes or to show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants. 

The City has the following types of funds: 

Governmental funds-Most of the City'S basic services are included in governmental funds, which 
focus on (I) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out 
and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental 
fund statements provide a detailed short-tenn view that helps users of the financial statements 
detennine whether there are more or fewer fmancial resources that can be spent in the near future to 
finance the City'S programs. By comparing infonnation presented for govermnental funds with 
similar infornlation presented for govemmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements, 
readers may better understand the long-tenn impact of the govemment's near-tenn financing 
decisions. Because this infonnation does not encompass the additional long-teml focus of the 
govemment-wide statements, we provide additional infonnation at the bottom of the govemmental 
funds statement, or on the subsequent page, that explain the relationship (or differences) between 
them. 

The City of Rockwall maintains 20 individual govemmental fund s. Information is presented 
separately in the govemmental funds balance sheet and in the govemmental funds statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General fund, Debt Service fund, 205 
Bypass fund, and the G.O. Bonds Capital Projects fund all of which are considered to be major funds. 
Data from the other 16 govemmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 
Individual fund data for each of these non-major govenunental funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

21 



ProprietGl), funds- Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in 
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the govenl1uent-wide statements, provide both long-term 
and shon-tenn financial infonnation . The City's enterpri se funds (a component of proprietary funds) 
are identical to the business type activities that are reponed in the govemmental-wide statement but 
provide more detail and additional infonnation such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. The Imemal 
Service funds (the other component of proprietary funds) are utilized to report activities that provide 
services for the City' s self insurance funds. The Internal Service funds are reponed as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

The City of Rockwall maintains an Enterprise Fund to account for water and sewer services provided 
to the City'S retail and wholesale customers. All activities associated with providing such services are 
accounted for in this fund , including administration, operations, maintenance, debt selvice, capital 
improvements, billing and collection . The City' s intent is that all costs of providing the services to the 
general public on a continuing basis are financed through user charges in a manner similar to a private 
business enteflJrise. 

The City maintains two intemal service funds to account for funds accumulated to self-insure for 
health and workers compensation claims. Individual fund data for each of rhese business-type funds is 
provided in the fonn of combining statements elsewhere in this repon. 

FiduciGlY funds-The Ci ty is the tmstee, or fiduciary, for certain funds. It is also responsible for 
other assets that - because of a trust arrangement - can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The 
City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended 
purposes. All of the City's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net 
assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net assets. We exclude these activities from the City' s 
government-wide financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to fmance its 
operations. 

Notes to the financial statements-The notes provide additional infonnation that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain 
required supplememary in/ormation concerning the City of Rockwall. This infoTIlration is required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America . 
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CONDENSED GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

At the end of fiscal year 2009, the City's net assets (assets exceeding liabilities) totaled $170,779,142. 
This analysis focuses on the net assets (Table I) and changes in net assets (Table 2) . 

The largest portion of the City's net assets (83.02% percent) reflects its investment in capital assets 
(i.e., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure) ; less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this 
debt must be provided frolll other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 

Table 1 

Net Assets 

Governmental Activities Buslness-T~~e Activities T otal Prima~ Government 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 

Current and other assets $ 35,699 ,050 $ 36.360.385 $ 30.640.868 $ 24 ,777 ,143 $ 66,339 ,918 $ 61.137,528 

Capita l Assets 1§;2 827 873 1~li! 028 5~~ 83311589 75677 237 266139462 234705,790 

T olal Assets 21 8 52§ ~6~ 195 ;}88 938 11~~~6457 100 4~4 380 332 47~ 380 295 84~ ~ 18 

Non-current liabilities 111 ,487 ,365 96,442,149 44 ,007.1 56 27,620.000 155,494,521 124,062,149 

Other liabili tie s 3 40li! 672 7 :2;34 512 2796045 1 534833 6 20Q 7 17 9062352 

Total Liabilities 114897037 lQ3 976 !2§§ 46803201 29154833 161 7QQ 238 133131501 

Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets , 

net of related debt 88,367,580 63,546,273 53.418,392 48,127,382 141 ,785 ,972 11 1,673,655 

Restricted for debt servIce 1,268,238 1,009,161 1 ,216 ,379 2,242 ,596 2,484 ,617 3,251,757 

Restricted for capital projects 1,038,291 13,213 ,026 6 ,352,322 15,645 ,640 7,390 ,613 28,858,666 

Unrestricted 12955777 1~643810 (;1 162 163 5 2§~ 929 19117~40 1 I:! 927 7~9 

Tolal nel assets Sl03 629 8B6 _li!A12.27'o ~925fi ..Ll1 299 Ml sno 1Z9 l~2 ..s.J6211:1 811 

An additional portion of the City of Rockwall 's net assets, $9,875,230 or 5.78% represents resources 
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The net assets which are Restricted 
for capital projects are due to debt being issued as projects are designed and construction is beginning. 
Several projects were completed or are nearing so causing this to be significantly less than in prior 
years. The remaining unrestricted net assets, $19,117,940, may be used to meet the government 's 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
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The following table will document key elements of the increase in total net assets for the year ended 
September 30, 2009. 

Program revenues: 

Table 2 

Changes in Net Assets 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

2009 2008 2009 2008 

Total Primary Government 

2009 2008 

Charges for services $ 3,287,149 $ 3,958 ,270 $11 ,274 ,215 $ 10,267,047 $ 14,561,364 S 12,570,130 

Operating grants & contributions 

Capital grants & contributions 

General Revenues: 

Property taxes 

Sales taxes 

Other 

Total revenues 

Program expenses: 

Mayor/Council 

Administration 

Finance 

Municipal Court 

Poltce 

Public works 

Community development 

Parks and recreation 

Interest on long. term debt 

Water and sewer 

Total expenses 

Increase (decrease ) in net assets 

before transfers 

Transfers 

81 ,199 

8 ,127.487 

16,422.119 

10.264,401 

3734068 

41,916,423 

109,844 

6,707.709 

1,409,054 

334,922 

8,364.774 

2,201,236 

5,482 ,571 

1,350 ,023 

5,250,506 

4,669,459 

35.900.098 

6 ,016,325 

151 ,741 

6,620,540 

14,780,112 

10,123,636 

4625450 

40 ,259 ,749 

117 ,366 

7 ,384 ,773 

1,338,894 

312 ,601 

7 ,130,698 

2,242 ,829 

7,094 ,068 

2 ,229,753 

4 ,025.927 

4 ,418 ,519 

36,295.428 

3.964,321 

3,374,32 1 

675348 

15,323,884 

13272 884 

13,272 ,884 

2.051,000 

1315405 (6201291) 

5,6 16 ,869 

16,844 ,170 

12206742 

12,206,742 

4 ,637,428 

(1 315405) 

81 ,199 

11,501,808 

16,422.119 

10.264,401 

4409 416 

57,240.307 

109,844 

6,707 ,709 

1,409,054 

334,922 

8 ,384 ,774 

2,201.236 

5,482,571 

1,350,023 

5,250,506 

4,669,459 

13272884 

49,172,982 

8 ,067 ,325 

1,059,602 

6,002 ,082 

11 ,827 ,931 

8.901,929 

6077 883 

46.439 ,557 

111 ,555 

5,523,924 

1,1 38,210 

298,383 

7,001 ,771 

2.207.468 

6 .928 ,067 

2 ,018.363 

3 ,088,750 

3,612,523 

10917 707 

42 ,846,721 

3,592 ,836 

Increase (decrease ) in net assets 12,217,616 5 ,279 ,726 (4, 150,291) 3,322,023 8 .067,325 3 ,592.836 

Net assets, October 1 9 1412 270 86132544 71299547 67977 524 162711817 154 110068 

Net assets, September 30 $103629888 S 91 412 nD $ 67 149 25f $ 71 2995.!Z $ 170 II9.1A2 $ 157702.Bfr4 

Governmental Activities 

The City'S total revenues of govelllmental activities were $41,916,423. A significant portion 39.2%, 
of the City'S revenues came from property taxes. Another 24.5% of revenue came from sales taxes. 
Ad valorem property tax revenues as a percent of revenues continue to increase each year due to the 
addition of new properties and increased valuation throughout the City as well as increases in tile tax 
rate to pay debt service. Assessed values of the properties in the City increased by $206,618,677 or 
7.4%. The City adopted a property tax rate of 50.31 cents per $100 of assessed valuation for fiscal 
year 2009. The rate did not increase over the prior year's rate. Sales tax revenue increased only 
slightly over the prior year. The increase, a modest 1.39% was reflective of a general slowing of the 
economy tempered by new business openings. 
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The economy which began to slow during 2008, continued slowing in 2009. The national decline in 
new housing starts was felt on the local level with residential building pennits low but in line with the 
prior year. The City experienced moderate levels of commercial building during the fiscal year which 
kept revenues in line wi tl] prior years. Over the past several years, Rockwall County, of which the 
City of Rockwall is the County seat, was one of the fastest growing counties in America, and the 
fastest growing county in Texas. The City's investment eamings included in the "other" revenues 
above were significantly lower than in year's past. 

Comparative Expenses - Governmental Acthities 

9 ,000 ,000 , ------- ------ ------ - ---------- --, 

6 ,000.000 

7,000,000 

6,000,000 

5,000 ,000 

4,000,000 

3,000,000 

2,000 ,000 

1,000 ,000 

L-____ ~.~2~O=09~ __________ ~.~2=O~O~8 _____ J 

The total cost of all programs and sen,;ces were $35,900,098. Of these costs $8,384,774 (23.6%) was 
for the Police Department. Administrative departments including Administration, Human Resources, 
and Intemal Operations had combined costs of $6,707,709 (18 .7%). Public Works costs were 
$5,482,571 (15.3%) and reflected ongoing projects. 

Business-Type Activities 

The City'S business-type ' activities recorded a decrease of $4,150,291 in net assets. Water sales 
increased by 8.9% over the prior year but are not back to the consumption levels seen before the 
extended period of near record drought conditions in 2007-08. The City's rates were increased in 
Jannary 2009 which led to the additional revenue this year. The City implemented conservati6n water 
rates in 200 I and increases them each time new rates are adopted. Sewer charges were not affected 
significantly because the City uses winter averaging to calculate sewer billing. Water and sewer 
charges were $11 ,274,415 . The ending working capital, excluding restricted assets and accounts 
payable to be paid from restricted assets, for the water and sewer fund was $3,944 ,920. 

Water and sewer impact fees revenue totaled $731 ,094 for the fiscal year. The City conducted an 
impact fee analysis and new rates were adopted during this fiscal year, positively impacting revenues. 
Impact fees , paid by developers and are designed to reduce the system 's initial costs in building assets. 

The City's water system has achieved the "Superior" rating by the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality. 
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Component Units 

The Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) reported revenues primarily from a 'l\ 
cent sales tax , authorized under the 4A Corporation statutes, of $3,300,452. Assets managed by the 
corporation include an inventory of over 310 acres of land, zoned for light industrial uses and 
available for sale and an industrial building cun·entIy leased and also available for sale. The REDC 
continues to attract companies to the City through its marketing efforts and ability to match businesses 
to available land . 

ANALYSIS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 

The City's General Fund reported an ending unreserved fund balance of $8,293,0 I 7. The main 
source of general fund revenue is sales tax, it accounted for $9,791,542 (43.3%) of total general fund 
revenue. Ad valorem property taxes account for $7,174,251 (31.7%) of general fund revenues. The 
City maintains the unreserved fund balance at or above acceptable levels as defined within the City 's 
financial policies. This "reserve" balance allows the City Council to elect to fund projects unforeseen 
during the budgeting process and provides a measure of security against changes in the economy and 
the timing of cash flows. 

Revenues by Source - General Fund 

Ad valorem 

Charges for 
services 

Pemuts 

The City'S Debt Service Fund reported an increase in fund balance of $286,543. Property tax 
collections for debt service requirements were $8,698,663. This represents an increase of 12.8% in 
order to pay debt service payments on bonds issued to construct numerous road and parks projects 
underway in 2009. After extensive study, the City adopted a Roadway Impact Fee in fiscal year 2009 
which will be a revenue source in this fund. 

The City began several road projects in fiscal year 2007 and 2008 which were funded through debt 
issuance. The City reports these projects in its GO Bonds Capi/al Projects Fund. The City issued 
General Obligation bonds for voter approved projects. In addition to roadway rehabilitation and 
extension projects, completion of neighborhood parks projects and construction of two fire stations 
was funded. Capital Outlay totaling $7 ,487,349 is reported for 2009 on these multi-year projects. The 
majority oftbe projects, including both fire stations were completed in 2009. 

The City also issued General Obligation bonds in years 2006 - 2009 to complete the design and 
construction of the new 205 Bypass Project, now formally named John King Boulevard. Voters 
approved construction of the roadway in a 2005 Bond Election Proposition. The project included the 
multi-phase design, right of way acquisition and construction of a new 7 mile roadway on the eastem 
edge of the City designed to alleviate traffic burdens on State Highway 205 through the center of the 
City. The project will be completed by December 31, 2009 and is expected to be under budget. 
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

During fiscal year 2009, the City Council of the City of Rockwall amended the budget 10 provide 
funding for several unforeseen projects and to recognize salary savings OVer the year, as well as 
increases or decreases in revenues when compared to original projections. With the adjustments made 
to the budget, the original budgeted expenditures of $21 ,622,400 decreased to $21,286, I 00 while 
revenues increased from $21 ,860,000 to $22,540,900. The City of Rockwall had originally estimated 
the ending general fund balance to be $7 ,881 ,164 however due to the budget adjustments mentioned 
above and a planned reduction in fund balance for equipment for the new fire stations, the fund 
balance was re-estimated 10 be $7,708,764. 

General fund revenues were $22,604,520, in line with the final budget projections. Actual general 
fund total expenditures were $20,843,407 a decrease of $442,693 less than final projections. This 
allowed the City to end the year with a fund balance of $8,295 ,977, an increase of $587,213 over the 
projected balance. The higher fund balance is attributable to management's conservative projections 
of both revenues and expenditures and savings in the final fire station equipment costs. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRA TlON 

Capital Assets 

At the end of the fiscal year 2009 the City had $266,139,461 (Table 3) invested in a broad range of 
capital assets, including buildings, parks facilities, roads, police and fire equipment and water and 
sewer lines. The balances shown below are net of accumulated depreciation. 

Table 3 
Capital Assets at Year-End 

Governmental Total Primary 
Activities Business-T~~e Activities Government 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
Land $ 5,692,56J $ 5,692,561 $ 799,533 $ 799,533 $ 6,492,094 $ 6,492,094 

Buildings 9,288,285 8,055,502 95,102 100,537 9,383,387 8,156,039 
Improvements other lhan 
buildings 21,622,268 21,826,44 1 60,685,467 56,659,071 82,307,735 78,485,5 12 

MachinclY & Equipmenl 5,263,317 5,034 ,169 708,000 613,745 5,97 1,317 5,647,9 14 

(nfrasll1lcture 79,40 1,906 73,584 ,182 79,401,906 73,584,182 

Cons\lUction in Progress 61,5 59,536 44,835,698 12 ,921,047 9,153.065 74 ,480,583 53,988,763 

Wastewater treatm ent facilities ~ lQ2 439 8 ~5 1 286 i 102 439 835 1286 

$82 821 813 $1 52 Q28 553 $ 833 11 5&8 $.I5 611231 £266132161 $234 lQ5 29il 

The City's capital improvement program includes a number of voter authorized projects to construct 
new streets and reconstruct several older city streets. Many of those projects were under construction 
in 2009 and nearing completion. A number of drainage projects were anticipated during the five-year 
planned capital improvement period. The City completed construction on the Fire Stations 3 and 4 in 
summer 2009. 

The City held a bond election in November 2005 which funded road, park and fire projects in excess 
of $64,000,000. In addition to the 205 Bypass project, the City was authorized to move forward with 
several neighborhood parks projects and the acquisition of land for two large regional parks. Progress 
has been made and includes the purchase of land for a large park in the nonhem area of the City, and 
completed construction on all of the neighborhood parks. 
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Construction in progress at September 30, 2009 for governmental activities included the ongoing 
construction costs associated with the 205 Bypass project and various other improvements. 

Notably, the construction in progress at fiscal year end for business-type funds includes the 
construction of waterline improvements and the extension of sanitary sewers into new areas of the 
city. Work commenced on a project to connect the Squabble Creek treatment plan to the regional 
wastewater interceptor project and will continue through 20 I 0 

Additional infornlation regarding the City's capital assets is found in note IY-C on pages 62-64. 

At year end, the City had $]53,731,754 in bonds and capitalized leases shown in Table 4. 

Table 4 
City of Rockwall Outstanding Debt 

Governmental Activities Business-Tv~e Activities Total Primary Government 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
General obligat ion bonds S 86,179,822 S 74,925 ,362 $ 135,178 $ 154,638 S 86,315,000 S75,OSO,OOO 

Cel1iticales of obligation 22 ,425 ,000 18.810,000 25 ,890,000 9,935,000 48,315,000 28,745,000 

Contractual obl igations 245,000 245,000 

Tax: notes 

Revenue bonds 11 ,670 ,000 12,530,000 11 ,670,000 12,530,000 

Capital Lease obl igations WLill. 4 !lOS 090 7431754 4 8Q5 Q20 

_U .US 6Q1 822 ~~ S1~126232 $2~ ..sl5~ 1312"4 5J2.lAD5,lW, 

The City is pennitted by A.t1icle XI, Section 5, of the State of Texas Constitution to levy taxes up 
to $2.50 per $100 of assessed valuation for general governmental services including the payment 
of principal and interest on general obligation long-tenn debt. The current ratio of net tax­
supported debt to assessed value of all taxable property is 3.57% or $3,349 per capita. 

The City 's bond ratings at September 30, 2009 were as follows: 

General Obligation 
Standard & Poor' s Rating Group A+ 
Moody's Investor Service Inc. Al 

Revenue 
A-
A2 

Sales Tax(REDCl 
A-
A2 

Additional infornlation on the City of Rockwall 's long-tenn debt can be found in note N-E , on 
pages 65-72 of this report. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 
2010 budget, tax rate, and fees that will be charged for the business-type activities. The major 
factor affecting all decisions has been and will continue to be the slowed growth in our 
community and the impact of the national economic recession. Rockwall saw the construction of 
several new commerciallretail business developments which positively impacted sales tax 
revenues in 2009. Costco's opening in April 2009 provided a new stream of sales tax revenues 
which will continue into a portion of budget year 2010 , Slowed development caused the City to 
be very conservative in projecting revenues from sales taxes and building pennits. Commercial 
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building stal1s were strong in 2009, but are projected to be more moderate in 2010. Interviews 
with local builders led the City to project continued slow home starts for the coming year. 

The City of Rockwall 's citizens enjoy above-average income levels per household. This 
combined with the City's proximity to major highways, and the Dallas-Ft.Worth SMSA make 
Rockwall an attractive city in which to locate. The City prides itself on a quality school district 
and "hometown" atmosphere. The Rockwall Economic Development Corporation works to 
attract businesses with relocation incentives as well as business retention incentives such as 
workforce training opportunities. The City's unemployment rate was 7%, well below the national 
totals . 

The City of Rockwall considered these factors when adopting the General Fund budget for fiscal 
year 2010. The budgeted revenues for fiscal year 2010 total $22,829,800 for the general fund . 
Ad valorem tax revenue is determined by two factors, the total assessed value established by the 
Rockwall Central Appraisal District and the tax rate established by the Rockwall City Council. 
Debt issuance in 2010 will be significantly less than in years 2006 - 2009 due to completion of 
several major voter approved projects. The property tax rate was maintained at 50.31 cents per 
hundred dollars of assessed value. Due to the slowing economy but in recognition of the impact 
of several months of new revenues from the Costco Wholesale Store, city officials have projected 
a .5% increase in that revenue over the prior fiscal year. 

The City adopted written financial policies in 2001 which require that revenues and expenditures 
be projected conservatively. The policies include debt level guidelines. These policies were 
reviewed by the City Council in 2009 and certain provisions related to the City's fund balance 
were changed. The amended policy provides that the General Fund reserves should be no less 
than 3 months of recurring operating appropriations. In addition, the policies provide that should 
an audited fund balance at the end of the fiscal year exceed 3.5 months, the City Council may 
elect to transfer a portion to a Capital Projects Fund. The budget as adopted for fiscal year 2010 
projects a fund balance of approximately 4.3 months of recurring operating expenditures. 

The 2010 budget expenditures includes absorbing the remaining costs associated with the 
addition of nine shift firefighter positions with the opening of the new fire stations as well as the 
Main Street program. The budget did not include significant new programs due to budgetary 
constraints. The City completed arUlexation of the Lake Rockwall Estates area and the budget 
does include costs necessary to begin city services to the area. 

The water and sewer rate study has been updated and the budget anticipates an increase in the 
rates which will be considered by the City Council in fall 2009. A number of capital projects to 
continue system expansion and the system are being planned for fiscal year 2010 while 
operational costs will be maintained at prior year levels. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with 
a general overview of the City's finances . For more information contact the City's Director of 
Finance, Mary Smith at (972) 771-7700; Finance Department; City of Rockwall; 385 South 
Goliad Street, Rockwall TX 75087. Emailmsmith@rockwall.com. 
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Basic Financial Statements 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 
Internel balances 
Due from other governments 
Due from primary government 
Inventories 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Accrued interest 
Deferred charges 
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 

Land 
Buildings and system 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 
Construction in progress 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 
Due to other governments 
Due to primary government 
Customer deposits 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
Restricted For: 

Debt Service 
Capitel Projects 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets 

-Gove-rnme-ntciil -
Activities 

-------- -

$ 2,641,638 
26,640,827 

3,128,381 

1,670,706 

2,870 

1,614,628 

5,692,561 
9,288,283 

21,622,268 
5,263,318 

79,401 ,906 
61 ,559,537 
~.'526 ,92~ 

3,194,371 
44,208 

154,671 
16,422 

4,730,243 
106,757,122 
114,897,037 

88 ,367,580 

1,268,238 
1,038,291 

12,955,777 
$ 103,629,886 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A·1 

Primary Government 
Business·type - . Component 

Activities Total Units . - ---------

$ 188,982 $ 2,830,620 $ 335,485 
3,786,586 30,427,413 6,590,684 
1,760,832 4,889,213 25,191 

1,670,706 556,571 
16,422 

219,901 222 ,771 13,866,127 

1,994,982 1,994,982 
22,036,266 22,036,266 

92,708 92,708 
560,611 2,175,239 184,380 

799,533 6,492,094 
68,883,009 78,171,292 

21 ,622,268 
708,000 5,971,318 16,073 

79,401 ,906 
12,921,047 74,480,584 

_~952c~~. ::':'}32,47.!l.,~1l.Q. 21 ,590,933 

1,190,138 4,384,509 376,489 
44,208 

154,671 
16,422 

319,550 319,550 
1,286,357 1,286,357 

935,276 5,665,519 1,106,930 
43,071 ,880 149,829,002 19,687,980 

--- 46,803,201 161 ?p~!~~8 •. ~1 , 171 ,3.~. -- ..... ---- -----

53,418 ,392 141,785,972 16,073 

1,216,379 2,484,617 
6,352,322 7,390,613 
6,162,163 19,117,940 403,461 

f - 67,149,256 $ ! 7~ , 77S.~ 142 $ 419,534 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

FunctionslPrograms 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT: 
Governmental Activities: 

Mayor/Council 
Administration 
Finance 
Municipal court 
Police 
Fire 
Public works 
Community development 
Parks and recreation 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Water and Sewer 
Total Business-type Activities 
Total Primary Government 

COMPONENT UNITS: 
Economic Development Corporation 
Rockwall Technology Park Association 
Total Component Units 

Program Revenues --_._- - --- - -- ----- -

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

__ EP~n~_e:s Services Contributions Contributions 

$ 109,844 $ $ $ 
6,707,709 70,773 33,134 111 
1,409,054 375 10,000 

334,922 1,082,488 
8,384,774 516,591 27,277 37,745 
2,201,236 124,830 10,788 
5,482,571 99 ,753 8,088,298 
1,350,023 1,025,979 
5,250,506 366,360 1,333 
4,669,459 

35,900,098 _ 3,28],149 81,199 8,127,487 

13,272,884 
13,272,884 

$ __ 49,172,982 

11,274,215 
11 ,274,215 

$ 14,561,364 

3,374,321 
3,374,321 

$ -_n_ 8{1 99 $ - 11,501,808 

$ 

$ 

4,089,806 $ 
142,192 

4,231,998 $ 

General Revenues: 

4,236 $ 
146,625 

150,861 $==== 

Ad valorem taxes, penalty and interest 
Sales Taxes 
Franchise Taxes 
Miscellaneous 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 

Transfers 
Total General Revenues 
Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets - Beginning 
Net Assets - Ending 

$ 

$=== 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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EXHIBIT A-2 

____ NetJ.Ex'p'~"s.~Hevenue a~d Changes inN-,,~As~t~ 

Governmental Business-type Component 
Activities Activities Total Units 

- - ----- - -----_._-

$ (109,844) $ (109,844) 
(6,603,691 ) (6,603,691) 
(1,398,679) (1,398,679) 

747,566 747,566 
(7,803,161) (7,803,161) 
(2,065,618) (2,065,618) 
2,705,480 2,705,480 
(324,044) (324,044) 

(4,882,813) (4,882,813) 
(4,669,459) (4,669,459) 

(24,404,263) (24,4()~ ,2632 

_. $ 1,375,652 1,375,652 
1,375,652 f,375,652 

(24,404,263) 1,375,652 _ J 23,028,61..!2 --------

$ (4,085,570) 
4,433 

--- (4,081;137) 

16,422,119 16,422,119 
10,264,401 10,264,401 3,300,452 
2,352,745 2,352,745 

769,707 97,102 866,809 
611,616 578,246 1,189,862 95,176 

6,201,291 (6,201,291 ) 
36,621,879 (5,525,943) 31,095,936 3,395,628 
12,217,616 (4,150,291) 8,067,325 (685,509) 
91,412,270 71,299,547 162,711 ,817 1,105,043 

-----

$ 103,629,886 $ 67,149,256 $ 170,779,142 $ 419,534 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Taxes - delinquent 
Fines 
Accrued interest 
Accounts receivable 
Assessments receivable 
Other receivables 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governments 
Inventory 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governments 
Due to primary government 

Total Liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for: 

Inventory 
Debt service 

Unreserved, reported in: 
General fund 
Special revenue funds 
Capital projects funds 
Total fund balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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Debt 
General Service 

Fund Fund --- -._ .. ----

895,485 $ 167,580 
6,763,154 635,858 

191 ,425 207,569 
65,559 
55,958 
16,961 

278,809 
267,728 273,712 

1,633,626 
2,870 

f0,171 ,575 $ - - J~284,719 
-

1,216,338 $ 
504,589 191 ,002 

154,671 
16,422 

- -1,875,598 207,424 -- - - - ---

2,870 
1,077,295 

8,293,107 

- - -8,295,977 1,077,295 

10,171,575 $ 1,284,719 



EXHIBIT A-3 

Olher Tolal 
205 Bypass G.O. Bonds Governmental Governmental 

_~p~oje~! __ __ Capital Projects Funds Funds "'-- -.-_._- - ----- .-~- -

$ 878,655 $ 311,811 $ 359,176 $ 2 ,612 ,707 
5,514,853 4,603,188 8,028,550 25,545,603 

398,994 
65,559 

36,866 27,943 120,767 
118,412 767,090 902,463 

149,589 149,589 
4,670 283,479 

541,440 
37,080 1,670,706 

2,870 
$ 6,430,374 $ ~=_J:96f~~ $ c _ J:,::!~£~155 $ 3i,2§4, 177 

$ 408,650 $ 209,365 $ 277,748 $ 2,112,101 
118,412 193,797 1,007,800 

324,025 324,025 
154,671 

16,422 
--- 408 ,650 - 327,777 795

2
5i6 _ _ ~!.?,01B -

2,870 
(59) 1 ,077,236 

8,293,107 
2,399,605 2,399,605 

6,021 ,724 4,733,577 6 ,151 ,039 16,906,340 -
6,021,724 4,733,577 ___ 8';;5Q,585 . ____ __ 28 ,679,158 

$ 6,430,374 $ 5,061 ,354 $ 9,346,155 $ 32,294,177 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets 
("SNA") are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds . 
Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds . 
The assets and liabilrties of internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the SNA. 
Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 
Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 
Olher long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expendrtures and are deferred in the funds. 
Court fines receivable unavailable to pay for current period expendrtures are deferred in the funds . 
Franchise taxes receivab le unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are not accrued in the funds. 
Contribution receivables unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 
Assessments receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 
Contracts receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds . 

Net assets of governmental activities - statement of net assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

EXHIBIT A-4 

28,679,158 

182,827,873 
368,693 
642,772 

(110,446,756) 
(725,507) 

(1 ,040,609) 
1,614,628 

55,364 
1,114,733 

118,412 
149,589 
271,536 

$ 103,629,886 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes, penalty and interest 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Charges for services 
Permits 
Municipal court 
Intergovernmental 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Mayor/Council 
Administration 
Finance 
Municipal court 
Police 
Fire 
Public works 
Community development 
Parks and recreation 

Total current 

Capital outlay: 
Administration 
Finance 
Police 
Fire 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 

Total capital outlay 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest 
Fiscal charges 
Bond issuance cost 

Total debt service: 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Proceeds of long-term debt 
Premium on bonds issued 
Discount on bonds issued 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

The accompanying noles are an integral part of th is statement. 

General 
Fund 

$ 7,174,251 
9,791 ,542 
2,444,296 

268,466 
1,005,541 
1,052,403 

375,981 
313,048 
168,992 

10,000 

109,845 
3,069,653 

998,497 
318,467 

7,583,087 
1,615,570 
1,528,010 
1,258,030 
4,320,322 

- ~0,801 ,48_1 

20,425 

735 
20,766 
41 ,926 

20,843,407 

1,761 ,113 

754,800 
(2,486,750) 

(1 ,731 ,950) 

29,163 

8,266,814 
$ ~~_ 8.295,_977 

40 

Debt 
Service 

Fund 

$ 8,698,663 

9,246 
118,248 

--8-,8~6, 157 

4,430,540 
4,062,552 

15,284 

___ 8,508,376 

8,508,376 

317,781 

18,762 
(50,000) 

(31 ,238) 

286,543 

790,752 
$ __ __ 1,077,295 



EXHIBIT A-5 

Other Total 
205 Bypass G.O. Bonds Governmental Governmental 

Proje~! __ Capi t~1 f.r0ject~ Funds Funds -- - .---~ -_._---
$ $ $ 534 ,661 $ 16,407,575 

472,859 10,264,401 
2,444,296 

469,680 738,146 
1,005,541 

4,501 1,056,904 
52,766 428,747 

172,024 97,940 19,357 611,615 
17,252 3,577 564,919 872,988 

810,527 145,096 1,846,834 2,812,457 
___ 999,8Q.3 _ _ ._ .2~~,6.13 3,965,577 __ ._~6,~42 , 67() 

109,845 
289,052 3,358,705 
267,939 1,266,436 

318,467 
192,535 7,775,622 

2,989 1,618,559 
1,528,010 
1,258,030 

173,202 4,493,524 --_._- --~.--- --,._- --925,717 ___ ~1 ,727,198 - .. ---~.-- - -----_.-

16,154,563 2,012,324 261,003 18,427,890 
78,866 78,866 

238,198 258,623 
5,127,105 1,335,586 6,462,691 

90,063 90,798 
347,920 113,491 482,177 

_~54,563 _2c487 , 3~ __ ~~! 1!,207 25,801 ,045 

240,000 4,670,540 
653,993 4,716,545 

15,284 
122,464 72,533 47,176 242,1 73 
122,464 ___ 72 , 5~:J. .. -- 941 ,169 ___ 9,644,542 

16,277,027 7,559,882 3,984,093 57,172,785 

(15,277,224) (7,313,269) (18,516) (20,530,115) 

3,068.404 4 ,297,691 525,100 8,664,757 
(13,788) (1,073,378) (865,050) (4,488,966) 

12,143,219 6,436,781 5,520,000 24,100,000 
290,639 191 ,905 73,591 556,135 
(40,192) (30,546) (40,774) (111,512) 

(2,757,413) (2,095,634) (4,853,047) 
_ 12,690,869 --7,726,819- 5,212,867 23,867,367 

(2 ,586,355) 413,550 5,194,351 3,337,252 

8,608,079 4 ,320,027 3,356,234 25,341 ,906 _. 
$ 6,021 ,724 $ 4,733,57 7 $ _ ~! 5~0, 585 $ 28,679,158 

--
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
RECONCIUA TlON OF THE STA TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Nel change in fund balances - lotal governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
("SON') are differenl because: 

EXHIBIT A-6 

$ 3,337,252 

Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA. 25,678,145 
The deprecialion of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. (6,914,147) 
Donations of capilal assels increase net assets in the SOA but not in the funds. 5,332,675 
Certain property tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 14,545 
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in Ihe funds bul is nol an expense in the SOA. 9,523,587 
Bond issuance costs and similar items are amortized in the SOA but nol in Ihe funds. 188,197 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest from beginning of period to end of period . 62,370 
The net revenue (expense) of inlernal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (306,180) 
Compensated absences are reported as the amount earned in the SOA but as the amount paid in the funds, (80,738) 
Certain fine revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 43,377 
Certain assessmenl revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 526 
Revenues in Ihe SOA for franchise taxes nol providing current financial resources are not reported in the funds. (91 ,551) 
Proceeds of bonds do not provide revenue in Ihe SOA, but are reported as current resources in the funds. (24,100,000) 
Bond premiums are reported in the funds but not in the SOA. (556,135) 
Bond discounls are reported in Ihe funds but not in the SOA. 111 ,512 
Certain contracts receivable revenues are deferred in the funds . This is the change in these amounts Ihis year. ____ . (25,81!!) 

Change in net assets of governmental activities - statement of activities $ 12,217,616 

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable (net of allowance) 
Other receivables 
Inventory 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accrued interest 

Total current assets 
Noncurrent assets: 
Deferred charges 
Capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assets being depreciated, net 

Total noncurrent assets 
Totat Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Customer deposits 
General obligation bonds - current 
Liability for compensated absences 
Liabilities Payable From Restricted Assets: 

Revenue bonds payable - current 
Obligations under capital leases - current 
Accrued interest payable 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
General obligation bonds payable 
Revenue bonds payable 
Obligations under capital leases payable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capi/al assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for debt seNice 
Restricted for construction 
Unrestricted 

Totat Net Assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

$ 

Enterprise 
Fund 

- - -Water ---

and Sewer 
Fund 

188,982 
3,786,586 
1,760,832 

219,901 

1,994,982 
22,036,266 

92,708 
30,080,257 ------- -

560,611 
13,720,580 
69,591 ,009 
83,872,200 

_1~ 3,952,457 

1,190,138 

319,550 
906,962 

91 ,731 

895,000 
351,671 

39,686 
3,794,738 --_ ... - -------

25,118,216 
10,810,163 
7,080,084 

43,008,463 
46,803,201 

53,418,392 
1,216,379 
6,352,322 
6,162,163 

$ 67,149,256 
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$ 

Internal 
Service 
Funds 

28 ,929 
1,095,224 

92,797 

356,763 
217,415 

__ __ 574,17!l. 

642,772 

$===64=2=,7=7=2 

EXHIBIT A-7 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for services 
Reinsurance reimbursement 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel services 
Contractual services 
Matetials and supplies 
Operations 
Utilities 
Depreciation and amortization 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) : 
Capital recovery fees 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous income 
Paying agent fees 
Interest expense 

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Net Income (Loss) before Operating Transfers 

TRANSFERS AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS: 
Capital contributions 
Transfers in 
Transfers from component unit 
Transfers out 

Total Transfers and Capital Contributions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, October 1 
Net assets, September 30 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

Enterprise 
Fund 

Water 
and Sewer 

Fund 

$ 11 ,274,215 

-"11,274,215 

1,966,671 
6,459,406 

466,925 
184,279 
439,659 

1 ,740,428 
_ .11 ,257.J.§.8_ 

16,847 ----- --- --

757 ,241 
578,246 

97,102 
(6,494) 

(2,009,022) 
(582,927) 
(566,080) 

2 ,617,080 
34,000 

(6,235,291) 
- (3,584,211) 

- ( 4 ,150,291) 

$ 
71,299,547 
67,149,256 
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Inlernal 
Service 
Funds 

$ 463,195 
245,543 

3,062,573 

-3 ,062,573 
-------

13,327 
8,828 

22,155 
--(2,331,680) 

2,025,500 

--2,O~ 

(306,180) 

948,952 

$,==~6~42~,7~7~2 

EXHIBIT A-8 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash Received from Customers 
Cash Payments to Employees for Services 
Cash Payments to Other Suppliers for Goods and Services 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities: 
Cash Paid to Other Funds 
Cash Received From Other Funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Proceeds from capital debt 
Principal and Interest Paid 
Capital recovery fees received 
Acquisition or Construction of Capital Assets 

Nel Cash Provided (Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Purchase of Investment Securities 
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of Securities 
Interest and Dividends on Investments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalenls at Beginning of Year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

Cash Equivalents Included In Investments: 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash 

Provided by Operating Activities 
Depreciation 
Miscellaneous Income 

Change in Assets and Liabililies: 
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables 
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories 
Decrease (Increase) in Due From Other Govemments 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 

Total Adjustments 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Non-Cash Activities: 
Capital Contributions 

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this stalement. 
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Business Type Governmental 
Activities Activities 

- Enterprise-- Intemal 
--·Watera~ Service 

Sewer Fund Funds ------- . __ ._._- -

$ 10,974,757 $ 663,097 
(1 ,945,089) 
(7,298,912) (3,036,071) 

__ J2~9.,756 ~.J2,372,974) 

(6,235,291 ) 
34,000 2,242,915 

~16,20~:?91) 2,242,915 

19,855,000 
(4,279,529) 

757,241 
(6,757 ,700) 
9,575,012 

(33,499,247) 
35,855,732 

578,246 
~34,731 
-~~--~ 

13,608 
~~~13 ,608 

8,039,208 (116,451) 
8,347,324 1,240,604 

$ 16,386,532 $,=~1~, 1g24~,1g,5~3 

$ 2,082,622 $ 
12,1 19,946 

$ 14,202,568 $ 

$ 16,847 $ 

1,740,428 
97,102 

(221,570) 
61,822 

(7,219) 
21,760 
21,586 

1,713,909 
$ 1,730,756 $ 

$ 2,617,080 $ 

1,095,224 

1,095,224 

(2,353,835) 

8,828 

(54,469) 

26,502 

(19,139) 
(2,372,974) 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to developers 

Total Liabilities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement. 
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Agency 
Fund 

Special 
Escrow 

Agency _ 

$ 25,421 
1,342,797 

$ ~- 1 , 368,2~ 

$ 
$ 

1,368,218 
1,368,218 

EXHIBtT A·10 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Accrued interest 
Accounts receivable 

Due from other governments 
Due from primary government 
Inventory 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets: 

Total Liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for: 

Inventory 
Unreserved 

Total fund balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Rockwall 
Economic 

Development 
__ ~O!p-o~tion __ 

$ 320,544 
6,550,349 

1,102 
22,226 

556,571 
16,422 

13,866,127 
$ 21 ,333,341 

$ 206,290 

206,290 

13,866,127 
7,260,924 

_ _ 21,127,!l_~1 

$ 21,333,341 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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Rockwall Tolal 
Technology Govemmental 

Park Funds 
- --~- --. - -- - -----

$ 14,940 $ 335,484 
40,335 6,590,684 

1,102 
1,863 24,089 

556,571 
16,422 

13,866,127 
$ ==57~~3!l. $-_ 21J390c~~ 

$ 1,972 $ 208,262 

- - - - -----r:s72 =_208,262-

13,866,127 
55,166 7,316,090 
55,166 ___ 21.,!82,21.7 

$ 57,138 $_ 2q90 ,47~ 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE COMPONENT UNIT GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet 

Amounts reported for governmentat activities in the statement of net assets 
("SNA") are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds. 
Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 
Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. 
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds . 
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and are deferred in the funds. 

Net assets of governmental activities - statement of net assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

EXHIBIT A-12 

21 ,182,217 

16,074 
(20,774,526) 

(168,227) 
(20,384) 
184,380 

$==~4~19~,5~3~4 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Sales taxes 
Charges for selVices 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Total current 

Capital outlay: 
Administration 

Total capital outlay 

Debt service: 
Principat 
Interest 
Fiscat charges 
Bond issuance cost 

Total debt service: 

Total expenditures 

$ 

Rockwall 
Economic 

Development 
_ Cor~oration 

3,300,451 
4,236 

94,774 

3,399,46f 

879,836 
879 ,836 

-- _._- ----- . 

2,147,960 = __ 2, 147.c!!.60 

1,095,000 
943,226 

3,322 
100,159 

2,141,707 ---- - - -

5,169,503 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditure (1,770,042) 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Proceeds of tong-term debt 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

6,130,000 
6,130,000 

4,359,958 

16,767,093 
21,127,051 
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$ 

$ 

Rockwall 
Technology 

Park 

402 
146,625 
147,027 

142,192 
142,1 92 _._-- -- -

142,192 

4,835 

-- - ----- -

4,835 

50,331 
55,166 

-

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 3,300,451 
4,236 

95,176 
146,625 

3,546,488 

1,022,028 
_ _ 1,022,028 

2,147,960 
__ _ 2) 4?,960 

1,095 ,000 
943,226 

3,322 
100,159 

2,141,707 

~_521 ,695 

(1 ,765,207) 

6,130,000 
6,130,000 

4,364,793 

16,817,424 
$ 21 ,182,217 

EXHIBIT A-13 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF COMPONENT UNIT GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
("SOA") are different because: 

The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. 
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 
Bond issuance costs and similar items are amortized in the SOA but not in the funds . 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest from beginning of period to end of period. 
Compensated absences are reported as the amount eamed in the SOA but as the amount paid in the funds. 
Proceeds of bonds do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current resources in the funds. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities - statement of activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

EXHtBIT A-14 

4,364,793 

(3,997) 
1,095,000 

70,897 
(79,267) 

(2,935) 
__ i~, 130,000) 

. (685,509) 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 3D, 2009 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The City of Rockwall , Texas, was founded in 1854 and incorporated in 1874. The City operates under the 
Council·Managerform of government as adopted by a home rule charter approved January 21 , 1985. The City 
provides a full range of municipal services including public safety (police and fire), highway and streets, parks 
and recreation , health and social services, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. In 
addition, the City provides water and sewer service as a proprietary function of the City. 

The accounting policies of the City of Rockwall , Texas, conform to generally accepted accounting principals 
issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board which is the recognized financial accounting 
standard setting body for governmental entities. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of the 
City's basic financial statements. 

The City of Rockwall is a home rule municipality governed by an elected mayor and six member City Council 
who appoint a City Manager. The City's (primary government) financial statements include its component units. 
The accompanying basic financial statements comply with the provisions of the GASB Statement No. 14, "The 
Financial Reporting Entity," in that the financial statements include all organizations, activities, functions and 
component units for which the City (the "primary government") is financially accountable . Financial 
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of a legally separate organization's governing 
body and either (1) the City's ability to impose its will over the organization, or (2) the potential that the 
organization will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the City. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

The Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) is governed by a five member board of directors 
appointed, atwill, by the City Council. REDC represents the City by promoting it as a location for new business; 
it also acquires and develops land for that purpose. REDC collects a half cent sales tax to support its activities. 

The Rockwall Technology Park (RTP) provides repair and maintenance of the common area within the park 
being developed by REDC. RTP's board of directors is composed of representatives of the landowners. At 
September 3D, 2009, REDC owned the majority of the land and the board was therefore composed of REDC 
board members. When the park becomes 75% or more owned by private landowners, it will become an entity 
independent of the City. 

The funds of both REDC and RTP are composed of governmental fund types. Stand alone financial statements 
for RTP as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 are not prepared . 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net 
assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component 
units. Forthe most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the 
primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary 
government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment 
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function 
or segment. Program revenues include t) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2009 

segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues . 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even 
though the latter are excluded from the government·wide financial statements. Major individual enterprisefunds 
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred , regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied . Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have 
been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period . For this purpose, the City considers revenues 
to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end olthe current fiscal period. Expenditures generally 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, 
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the currentfiscal period are all considered 
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the 
portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible 
to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the City. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund . It accounts for all financial resources olthe general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Debt SeNice Fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and 
interest on long·term general obligation debt of governmental funds. 

The 205 Bypass Project Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures related to the construction of the 
of the new 205 Bypass roadway project. 

The G.O. Bonds Capital Projects Fund accounts for the acquisition or construction of capital assets used 
in the operation of governmental funds. 

The City reports the following major proprietary fund : 

The Water and Sewer Fund operates the water distribution system and the wastewater treatment plants, 
wastewater pumping stations, and collection systems. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Funds account for employees' health insurance, and worker's compensation coverage 
services provided to other departments or agencies of the government, or to other governments on a cost· 
reimbursement basis. 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2009 

Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specified purposes (not including expendable trusts or major capital projects) . 

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others. 
The Agency Fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or have a measurement 
focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. This fund is used to 
account for developer contributions for infrastructure projects related to various developments to be 
constructed at a later date. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1 , 1989, generally are 
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type 
activities and enterprise funds, subject to th is same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent 
private~sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the City's 
water and wastewater function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned . 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including 
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as genera' revenues rather than as program 
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes, miscellaneous revenue, and interest income. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water and Sewer 
enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services. The enterprise utility fund also recognizes as 
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the 
system. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

D. Assets, liabilities, and ne1 assets or equity 

1. Deposits and investments 

The City maintains various accounts for each fund at its depository. The City also has cash maintained by 
agents for debt payments and reserves, construction reserves and worker compensation claims. For 
purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased 
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

The City investment policy authorizes the Director of Financeto invest in the following types of investments: 

a. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities with finite maturity dates, with 
a maximum maturity of not greater than 5 years. Laddering of investments should be considered. 

b. Direct obligations of the State ofTexas or its agencies and instrumentalities, with stated finite maturity 
dates. 

c . Other obligations, with finite maturity dates, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally 
guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas or the United States or their respective agencies or 
instrumentalities. 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30,2009 

d. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities and other political subdivisions of any state having 
been rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm and having 
received a rating of not less than "A" or its equivalent. 

e. Certificates of deposit issued by a state or national bank domiciled in the state of Texas or a savings 
bank domiciled in the state of Texas provided that they are: 

(t) Guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor, 

(2) Secured by obligations outlined in items t - 4. The market value of all collateral must be marked 
to market on a daily basis and shall not be less than 102% of the principal amount of the 
certificate plus accrued interest, or 

(3) Secured in any other manner in an amount provided by law for deposits of the City. 

f. Repurchase agreements which are fully collateralized by obligations of the United States or its 
agencies and instrumentalities, marked to market on a daily basis with a market value of at least of the 
102% of the principal invested, including accrued interest. The securities being purchased must be 
pledged to the City and held in the City's name by a third party selected and approved by the City. 
The repurchase agreement must have a defined termination date and be placed through a primary 
government securities dealer or a financial institution doing business in the state of Texas. The 
repurchase agreements should be secured by obligations approved in this policy. 

g. Banker's acceptances having a stated maturity of 270 days or less, to be liquidated in full at maturity, 
which are rated not less than "A-t " or "P-l " (or an equivalent rating) by at least one nationally 
recognized credit rating agency provided that it is eligible for borrowing from a Federal Reserve Bank. 

h. Commercial paper having a stated maturity of 270 days or less and rated not less than "A- t " or "P-l " 
(or an equivalent rating) by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies or one nationally 
recognized rating agency and is fully secured by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a bank 
organized and existing under the laws of the United States. 

I. No-load money market mutual fund registered with and regulated by the SEC, which has a dollar­
weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or less. It must have included in its investment objectives 
its intent to maintain a stable net assets value of $1 for each share. The fund must provide the City 
with a prospectus and other information required by the SEC. 

j. No-load mutual funds, registered with and regulated by the SEC, having weighted maturity of less than 
two years, and which invests exclusively in investments approved by this policy. 

k. Investment pools which are approved by the City Council, provided they meet all the criteria for 
investment pools outlined in Chapter2256, Texas Local Government Code, and maintain a continuous 
rating not lower than AAA or AAA-m (or an equivalent rating) from at least one nationally recognized 
rating service. 

The City holds various mortgage backed securities that offer higher yields but are sensitive to changes in 
interest rates and other market conditions. Timely payment of interest and principal are guaranteed by 
federal agencies. The City will not be required to sell these securities prior to maturity barring an event that 
would be isolated, nonrecurring , unusual, and could not reasonably be anticipated by the City. The City 
has no borrowed funds used for investing or reverse repurchase agreements. 

Investments having a maturity of 1 year or more, when purchased, are stated at fair value . Short term 
investments are stated at cost or amortized cost 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2009 

2. Receivables and payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 
of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i .e., the current portion of inter fund 
loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (Le., the non-current portion of interfund loans) . All other 
outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due tojfrom other funds." Any residual balances 
outstanding between the governmental activities and business~type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as "internal balances," 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve 
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are 
not expendable available financial resources. 

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for un collectibles, Trade accounts receivable in excess 
of 60 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles . 

Property taxes are levied on October 1 by the City based on the January 1 property values as assessed 
by the Rockwall County Central Appraisal District. Taxes are due without penalty until January 31, of the 
next calendar year. After January 31 the City has an enforceable lien with respect to both real and personal 
property. Under state law, property taxes levied on real property constitute a perpetual lien on the real 
property which cannot be forgiven without specific approval of the State Legislature. Taxes applicable to 
personal property can be deemed uncollectible by the City. 

3. Inventories and prepaid items 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method . Inventories of governmental 
funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 

4. Restricted assets 

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet 
because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. 

5. Capital assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g ., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental Dr business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with 
an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess 
of two years_ Such assets are recorded at historical cost Dr estimated historical cost if purchased Dr 
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value olthe asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized . 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed . Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of 
the capitalized value of the assets constructed . 

56 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2009 

Capital assets of the primary government. as well as the component units, is depreciated using the straight 
line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Public domain infrastructure 
System infrastructure 
Equipment 

6. Compensated absences 

20 - 30 years 
20 - 50 years 
20 years 
50 years 
3 -10 years 

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation pay benefits up to 
specified limits. Sick leave is accrued at 1 .25 days per month. However, once an employee has accrued 
120 days of sick leave, earned sick leave in excess of 120 days may be converted to vacation leave at a 
ratio of 3 days sick leave to one day of vacation leave up to a maximum of 15 sick leave days per year. 
Upon termination , any accumulated sick leave over 120 days shall be converted to vacation leave at a ratio 
of 3 days sick leave to one day vacation leave to be paid to the employee in accordance with the vacation 
leave policy. Upon retirement from the City, all accrued sick leave shall be converted to vacation pay at 
a ratio of 3 days sick leave to one day vacation leave and shall be paid to the employee if he/she has 10 
or more years of service to the City. Unused compensatory time for nonexempt employees is paid on 
termination. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary 
fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they are 
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources, for example, as a result of 
employee resignations and retirements. 

7. Long-term obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund type in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
straight line method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net 
of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and 
amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

8. Fund equity 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that 
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. 
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change. 

II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide 
statement of net assets: 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-total governrnentalfunds 
and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. One 
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element of that reconciliation explains that "Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period 
expenditures and are delerred in the funds." The details of this $1 ,614,628 difference are as follows: 

Bonds issuance costs: 
City $1,614,628 

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities : 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconcil iation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assets of 
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide staternent of activities. One element of that 
reconciliation explains that "Revenues in the Statement of Activities not providing current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds." The details of this $91 ,551 difference are as follows: 

Estimate of semi-annual franchise tax on electricity 

III . STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary information 

The City follows Ihe fol lowing procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

1. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

2. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

3. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund: 
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council. 
Therefore the fund level is the legal level of control. 

4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year. The legally 
adopted budgets for the General Fund, certain Special Revenue Funds and the Debt Service Fund are 
adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. 

5. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the City Council. During 2009, individual 
amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations. Any budgeted amounts 
appropriated at fiscal year-end and not spent automatically lapse. 

6. The City did not adopt budgets for certain Special Revenue Funds. These unbudgeted Special Revenue 
Funds were as follows: 

Emergency Siren Fund 
Downtown Improvement Fund 
Art in Public Places Fund 

7. Capital Project funds were not budgeted . Since project length financial plans usually extend into two or 
more fiscal years, this makes comparisons confusing and misleading. 
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B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations 

The following funds had expenditures in excess of appropriations: 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Cemetary Fund 

PID 

C. Deficit fund equity 

The following funds had deficit fund balances at September 30, 2009: 

Harbor Debt Service Fund 

Employee Benefits Internal Service Fund 

$800 

304,026 

$59 

$427,616 

The deficit in the Harbor Debt Service Fund was caused by unanticipated expenditures, and will be covered 
by additional revenues in the future. The deficit in the Employee Benefits fund was caused by unanticipated 
health care cost increases, and will be covered by additional transfers from the general fund. 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. Deposits and investments 

Deposits 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be 
returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. At 
September 30, 2009, the City's deposits were entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the City's name; as a result, the City's deposits were 
not exposed to custodial credit risk. 

Under a contractual agreement with North Texas Municipal Water District (NTMWD) , depository accounts are 
maintained by NTMWD for interest and sinking , debt, and construction reserves totaling $1,992,054 which are 
separately insured or secured by collateral pledged by NTMWD's depository. This amount is included in 
restricted cash on the statement of net assets. 

The deposits of REDC and RTPA are covered by the City's depository contract and, therefore, at September 
30, 2009, these deposits were entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution's trust department or agent in the City's name; as a result, the deposits of REDC and RTPA were not 
exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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Investments 

At September 3D, 2009, the City's investments were : 

Primary Government 

U.S. Government Agencies 

Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 

Federal National Mortgage Asso. 

Money Market Funds 

Total Primary Government 

Fiduciary Fund 

Discrete Component Units 

Rockwall Economic Development 

Corporation 

Money Market Funds 

Rockwall Technology Park 

Money Market Funds 

Total Discrete Component Units 

Total Reporting Entity 

Investments are reported in the 

Statement of net assets as follows: 

Governmental activities 

Business-type activities 

Discrete component units: 

Rockwall Economic 

Development Corporation 

Rockwall Technology Park 

Fiduciary Fund 

Carrying 

Value 

$12,247,756 

3,000,000 

3500000 

18,747,756 

33715923 

52463 679 

1,342,797 

6,550,349 

40335 

6590684 

$60,397,160 

$26,640,827 

25,822,852 

6,550,349 

40,335 

1 342 797 

$60.397.160 

Less than 1 

$5,000,000 

5,000,000 

33715923 

38715923 

1,342,797 

6,550,349 

40335 

6590684 

$46.649.404 

60 

MahJrjty (months) 

2-6 7-12 13-18 

$2,079,005 $5,168,751 

3,000,000 

3500000 

3,000,000 5,579,005 5,168,751 

3000000 5579005 5168751 

$3.000,000 $5,579.005 $5,168.751 
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B. Receivables 

Receivables as of year-end forthe government's individual major funds and nonmajor, and fiduciary funds inthe 
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 

G.O. Bonds 
Debt 205 Bypass Capital Nonmajor Water and 

General Service Project Projects and Other Sewer 

Taxes receivable - delinquent $191,425 $207,569 $ $ $ $ 

Fines receivable $102,469 $ $ $ $ $ 

Allowance for uncoHectibles 136,910) 

$65,559 $ $ $ $ $ 

Accrued Interest $55,958 $ $36,866 $27,943 $ $92,708 

Accounts receivable $16,961 $ $ $118,412 $767,090 $2,250,250 

Allowance for uncollectibles 1489,418) 

Net other receivables $16,961 $ $ $118,412 $767,090 $1 ,760,832 

Assessments receivable $ $ $ $ $149,589 $149,589 

Other receivables $278,809 $ $ $ $4,670 $ 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered 
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period , Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition 
in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned . At the end of the current fiscal year, 
the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were 
as follows: 

Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund) 

Contract receivable not yet due 

Fines receivable 

Delinquent property taxes receivable (Debt Service Fund) 

Assessments receivable not yet due (Street improvements) 

Contributions not yet received (Street Improvements) 

Seizures not awarded (Special Crimes Unit) 

Total deferred/unearned revenue for governmental funds 
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Unavailable 

$177,691 

271 ,534 

55 ,364 

191,002 

149,589 

118,412 

44,208 

$1,007,800 

Unearned 

$ 

44,208 

$44,208 
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C. Capital assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2009: 

Primary Government 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Machinery and equipment 

Infrastructure 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

less accumulmed depreciation for: 

Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Machinery and equipment 

Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capilal assets being depreciated, net 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 

Balance 
9/30/08 

$5,692.551 

44,835,698 

50,528,259 

10,554,952 

24,074,474 

11,415,874 

112,332,202 

158,377,502 

(2,499,450) 

(2,248,033) 

(6.381 .705) 

(38.748.020) 

(49.877.208) 

108,500,294 

$159,028,553 

Additions 

$ 

22,883,881 

22,863,881 

20,425 

380,337 

1,471 .202 

6,254 ,975 

8,126,939 

(380.181) 

(1.338.283) 

(1,308,677) 

(3.887.006) 

(6,914,147) 

1,212,792 

524,096,673 

62 

Retirements 

$ 

(297.353) 

(378,923) 

(676,276) 

378,923 

378,923 

(297,353) 

($297.353) 

Completed 
Construction 

$ 

(6.160.043) 

(6.160.043) 

1,889,892 

753,773 

66,623 

3,449,755 

6,160,043 

$ 

Balance 
9/30/09 

$5,692,561 

61,559,536 

67,252 ,097 

12,167,916 

25,208,584 

12,574,776 

122,036,932 

171,988,208 

(2.879.631) 

(3,586,316) 

(7,311,459) 

(42.635.026) 

(56,412.432) 

115,575,776 

$182,827,873 
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES: 

Capital assets , not being depreciated: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets , baing depreciated: 

Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Sewage treatment plants and pump stalion 

Machinery and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Sewage treatment planls and pump station 

Machinery and equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Capital assels being depreciated, net 

Business type activities capital assets, net 

Balance 
9/30/08 

$799.533 

9,153,065 

9,952 ,598 

198,1 09 

68,973 ,183 

12,516,072 

3 ,917 ,2 12 

65,604,576 

(97,572) 

(12,314,112) 

(4,164,786) 

(3,303,467) 

(19 ,879 ,937) 

65.724,639 

$75,Sn,237 

Addihons Retirements 

6,189,972 

6,1 89,972 

3 ,029,15B 

155,650 

3,184,808 

(5,435) 

(1,424,752) 

(24B,B47) 

{51 ,395) 

(1 ,740,429) 

1,444 ,379 

$7,634,351 $ 

Completed 
Construction 

(2,421 ,990) 

(2,421 ,990) 

2,421 ,990 

2 ,421 ,990 

S 

Balance 
9/30/09 

$799 ,533 

12,921,047 

13,720,580 

198 ,109 

74,424,331 

12,516,072 

4,072,862 

91,211,374 

(103,D07) 

(13,738,864) 

(4,413,633) 

(3,364,862) 

(21 ,620,366) 

69,591 ,008 

$83,311 ,SB8 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

Administration 

Finance 

Municipal court 

Police 

Fire 

Public works 

Community development 

Parks and recreation 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 

Water and sewer 

63 

570,430 

120,897 

16,020 

398,203 

476,405 

4,006,292 

84,503 

1 241 397 

$6,914,147 

$1,740,429 
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Construction commitments 

The City has active construction projects as of September 30, 2009. The projects include street construction, 
parking improvements, water system improvements, and sewer system improvements. 

Remaining 

Project Spent to Date Commitment 

Street improvements $8,532,052 $126,265 

Parking improvements 131 ,769 51,714 

Drainage improvements 36,760 233,725 

Water system improvements 7,996,733 239,917 

Sewer system improvements 136,678 1,657,528 

$16,833,992 $2,309,149 

The street improvements and parking improvements are being financed by bond proceeds. The 
commitment for water system improvements and sewer system improvements are being financed by bond 
proceeds. 

Discretely presented component units - Rockwall Economic Development Corporation: 

Balance Completed Balance 
9/30/08 Additions Retirements Construction 9/30/09 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Furniture and fixtures $83,946 $83,946 

Total capital assets being depreciated 83,946 83,946 

l ess accumulated depreciation for: 

Furniture and fixtures (63,876) (3,B56) (67,732) 

Total accumulated depreciation (63,876) (3,B56) (67,732) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, nel $20,070 ($3,B56) $16,214 

The Rockwall Economic Development Corporation has active construction projects as of September 30, 2009 
to improve the industria) park. $1,499,306 has been spent to date on the project, with a remain ing commitment 
of $162,415. The project is being funded by contractual obligations. 
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D. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers 

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2009, is as follows: 

Fund Receivable Payable 

General Fund $267,728 $ 

Debt Service 273,712 

Nonmajor governmental funds 324,025 

Internal Service Funds 217,415 

Total Internal Service Funds 541,440 541,440 

Totals $541,440 $541 ,440 

The outstanding balances between funds result primari ly from the time delay between the dates that 
interfund goods and services are provided and payments between funds are made. Also, working capital 
loans are made to capital projects funds in advance of debt issuances. These are expected to be collected 
within one year. 

The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2009, is as follows: 

Fund 

Major Governmental Funds 

General Fund 

Debt Service Fund 

205 Bypass Project 

G.O, Bonds Capital Projects 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund 

Internal Service Funds 

Totals 

Transfer In 

$754,800 

18,762 

3,068,404 

4,297,691 

525,100 

34,000 

2,025,500 

$10,724,257 

Transfer Out 

$2,486,750 

50,000 

13,788 

1,073,378 

865,050 

6,235,291 

$10,724,257 

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs or capital projects that the 
City must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

E. Long-term debt 

The City issues general obl igation debt (in the form of general obligation bonds, certificates of obligation, 
contractual obligations, and notes payable) to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities. General obl igation debt has been issued for both governmental and business-type 
activities. These issues are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. 
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General Obligation Debt Outstanding as of September 30, 2009, is as follows: 

Year 
Original of Final Interest Balance 

Purpose Amount Issue Maturity Rate 9/30/09 

Governmental Activities 

General Obligation Bonds: 

Improvements 2,150,000 2000 2020 5.00%-6.00% $100,000 

Refunding 4,024,394 2003 2015 2.00%-4.00% 1,809,822 

Refunding and Improvements 13,345,000 2005 2025 3.00%-4.50% 12,140,000 

Improvements 35,775,000 2006 2036 4.50%-5.50% 33,140,000 

Improvements 21,765,000 2007 2037 5.13%-6.13% 20,750,000 

Improvements 9,515,000 2008 2028 2.05%-2.50% 9,175,000 

Improvements 9,065,000 2009 2029 2.00%-460% 9,065,000 

Total General Obligation Bonds 86,179,822 

Certificates of Obligation Bonds: 

Improvements 6,500,000 2000 2020 4.75%-5.75% 300,000 

Improvements 4,295,000 2002 2012 2.80%-3.80% 355,000 

Improvements 12,415,000 2005 2025 3.00%-5.00% 11 ,855,000 

Improvements 5,270,000 2006 2026 4.25%-5.00% 4,225,000 

Improvements 505,000 2007 2011 4.25%-4.50% 265,000 

Improvements 395,000 2008 2028 3.00%-5.00% 300,000 

Improvements 5,125,000 2009 2029 2.00%-4.60% 5,1 25,000 

Total Certificates of Obligation 22,425,000 

Total Governmental Activities General Obligation Debt 108,604,822 

Business-type Activities: 

General Obligation Bonds: 

Refunding 300,606 2003 2015 2.00%-4.00% 135,178 

Certificates of Obligation: 

Improvements 10,310,000 2007 2027 4.25%-4.50% 9,605,000 

Improvements 16,895,000 2008 2028 3.00%-5.00% 16,285,000 

Total Certificates of obligation 25,890,000 

Total business-type general obligation debt 26,025,178 

Total General Debt $134,630,000 

66 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year Ended September 30, 2009 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general debt: 

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities 

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Total 

2010 $4,458,038 $4,766,487 $906,962 $1 ,125,337 $11 ,256,824 

2011 4,748,038 4,603,526 951,962 1,094,412 11,397,938 

2012 5,218,038 4,417,033 991 ,962 1,061,949 11 ,688,982 

2013 5,218,038 4,206,821 1,041 ,962 1,028,099 11,494,920 

2014 5,428,038 4,000,284 1,091,962 990,949 11,511 ,233 

2015-2019 27,184,632 16,628,935 6,210,368 4,284,728 54,308,663 

2020-2024 25,670,000 9,757,508 7,855,000 2,804,793 46,087,301 

2025-2029 17,490,000 5,074,200 6,975,000 789,420 30,328,620 

2030-2034 8,325,000 2,338,351 10,663,351 

2035-2037 4,865,000 410,213 5,275,213 

Total $108,604,822 $56,203,358 $26,025,178 $13,179,687 $204,013,045 

REVENUE BONDS. The City issues revenue bonds where the City pledges income derived from the acquired 
or constructed assets to pay the debt service. Revenue bonds outstanding at year end are as follows: 

Original Year Final Interest Balance 
Purpose Amount Issue Maturity Rate 9/30/09 

Revenue Bonds 

Improvements $3,535,000 1999 2019 4.1 5%-5.00% $1,405,000 

Improvements 6,700,000 2002 2022 4.00%-4.90% 5,040,000 

Refunding and improvements 6,415,000 2005 2025 3.00%-4.50% 5,225,000 

Total Revenue Bonds 11 ,670,000 

Plus unamortized premium 14,464 

Less unamortized discount on bonds (64,853) 

Total Revenue Bonds $11 ,619,611 
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Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

Water and Sewer Fund 

Year Princi~al Interest 

2010 $895,000 $507,658 

2011 740,000 471 ,228 

2012 770,000 440,817 

2013 795,000 407,986 

2014 830,000 374,474 

2015·2019 4,085,000 1,360,830 

2020·2024 3,165,000 458,558 

2025 390,000 17,550 

Total 11 ,670,000 $ $4,039,101 

Unamortized Premium 14,464 

Unamortized Discount (64,853) 

Total Revenue bonds $11,619,611 

Refunded Bonds 

Total 

$1,402,658 

1,211,228 

1,210,817 

1,202,986 

1,204,474 

5,445,830 

3,623,558 

407,550 

$15,709,101 

In previous years, the City purchased U.S. government securities that were placed in irrevocable trusts with 
escrow agents to provide for all future debt service payments on certain bonds. As a result , these bonds are 
considered to be defeased and the liability for these bonds has been removed from the City's statement of net 
assets. The outstanding balances of refunded bonds at September 3D, 2009, are as follows: 

Year Year Balance 

Bond Type of Issue Refunded 9/30/09 

General obligation 2000 2005 $1,395,000 

Certificates of obligation 2000 2005 4,235,000 

General obligation 1999 2009 4,595,000 

Contractual obligation 1999 2009 210,000 

$10,435,000 

Capitalized Lease Obligations 

The City has entered into a contract with the North Texas Municipal Water District), a conservation and 
reclamation district and political subdivision of the state ofTexas, for construction and operation of sewer plants 
and to provide treated water to the City. The contractual obligations have been treated as capitalized leases. 
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Capitalized lease obligations outstanding at September 30, 2009 are as follows: 

Original Year Final Interest 
Purpose Amount Issue Maturity Rate 

Capital Leases 

South Plant Improvements $1 ,800,000 1996 2016 various 

Ground Storage Facility 2,013,434 2005 2025 various 

Pump Station 2,145,000 2006 2026 various 

Buffalo Creek Plant 2,960,000 2008 2028 various 

Total Capitalized Lease Obligations 

Capital lease obligation debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

Year Total 

2010 $711,141 

2011 713,791 

2012 715,125 

2013 720,501 

2014 714,226 

2015-2019 3,122,039 

2020-2024 2,855,560 

2025-2026 996,667 

Total payments 10,549,050 

Less imputed interest !3,117,296) 

Total Capital Lease Obligations $7,431,754 
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Balance 
9/30/09 

$865,000 

1,736,754 

1,955,000 

2,875,000 

$7,431,754 
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CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

During the year ended September 30, 2009, the following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the capital 
long-term debt: 

Governmental activities: 

General obligation bonds 

Contractual obligations 

Certificates of obligation 

Deferred amounts: 

Unamortized premium (discount) 

On refunding 

Total bonds payable 

Compensated absences 

Governmental activity Long-Term Liabi lities 

Business-type activities: 

General obligation bonds 

Revenue bonds 

Less deferred premium (discount) 

Total bonds payable 

Capital lease obligations 

Compensated absences 

Business-type activities 
Long-Term Liabilities 

Balance 
9/30/08 

$74,925,362 

245,000 

18,810,000 

1,501,918 

95,462,280 

959,869 

$96,442,149 

$10,089,638 

12,530,000 

(24,638) 

22,595,000 

4,805,094 

70,145 

$27,470,239 

Additions 

$18,580,000 

5,520,000 

446,240 

24,955 

24,571,195 

1,032,706 

$25,603,901 

$16,895,000 

84,475 

16,979,475 

2,960,000 

172,873 

$20,112,348 

Retirements 

($7,325,540) 

(245,000) 

(1,905,000) 

(82,517) 

(1 ,248) 

(9,559,305) 

(951,966) 

($10,511,27 

($959,460) 

(860,000) 

(13,096) 

(1,832,556) 

(333,340) 

(151,287) 

($2,317,183) 

Balance 
9/30/09 

$86,179,822 

22,425,000 

1,865,641 

23,707 

110,494,170 

1,040,609 

$111,534,77 

$26,025,178 

11,670,000 

46,741 

37,741 ,919 

7,431 ,754 

91 ,731 

$45,265,404 

Due Within 
One Year 

$2,908,038 

1,550,000 

82,517 

1,248 

4,541 ,803 

190,936 

$4,732,739 

$906,962 

895,000 

2,639 

1,804,601 

351 ,671 

25,675 

$2,181,947 

For the governmental activities, claims and judgements and compensated absences are generally liquidated 
by the general fund. The government-wide statement of activities includes $895,000 of revenue bonds and 
$351,671 of capital leases due within one year for business-type activities in "liabilities payable from restricted 
assets" on that same statement. 

Conduit Debt Obligations 

Certain revenue bonds have been issued in the past to provide financial assistance to private-sector and 
nonprofit entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and housing facilities deemed to be in the 
public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received 
on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers 
to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. The City is not obligated in any manner for repayment 
of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. 
As of September30, 2009, there was one series of revenue bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount 
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payable for the issue was $1 ,700,000. 

Authorized and Unissued Debt 

The following tables detail the status of all authorized general obligation and revenue bonded debt as of 
September 30, 2009: 

General Obligation Bonds Balance 

Year Amount Amount Unissued 
Authorized Authorized Issued 9/30/09 

1985 $1,500,000 ($600,000) $900,000 

1994 4,100,000 (3,600,000) 500,000 

2002 19,845,000 (19,540,000) 305,000 

2005 63,705,000 (56,985,000) 6,720,000 

$89,150,000 ($80,725,000) $8,425,000 

Revenue Bonds Balance 

Year Amount Amount Unissued 
Authorized Authorized Issued 9/30/09 

1980 $2,000,000 ($1,060,000) $940,000 

1985 1,540,000 1,540,000 

Totals $3,540,000 ($1 ,060,000) $2,480,000 

Discretely presented component units • Rockwall Economic Development Corporation: 

$5,000,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds , series 1999, payable in annual installments through 
August 1, 2019, interest payable at 4.20% to 6.20% 

$4,545,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, series 2008, payable in annual installments through 
August 1, 2028, interest payable at 7.00% 

Total Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 

$3,225,000 Certificates of Obligation, series 2005, payable in annual installments through 
August 1, 2025, interest payable at 3.00% to 5.00% 

$5,540,000 Certificates of Obligation, series 2006, payable in annual installments through 
August 1,2025, interest payable at 4.25% to 5.00% 

$6,130,000 Certificates of Obligation , series 2008, payable in annual installments through 
August 1,2028, interest payable at 3.00% to 5.00% 

Total Certificates of Obligation 

Total 
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for REDC debt are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

Year Principal Interest Total 

2010 $1,085,000 $1,031,794 $2,116,794 

2011 1,135,000 985,269 2,120,269 

2012 1,185,000 935,657 2,120,657 

2013 1,245,000 881,319 2,126,319 

2014 1,315,000 823,569 2,138,569 

2015-2019 5,875,000 3,232,495 9,107,495 

2020-2024 4,790,000 1,899,956 6,689,956 

2025-2028 3,970,000 527,522 4,497,522 

Total $20,600,000 $10,317,581 $30,917,581 

During the year ended September 30,2009, lhe following changes occurred in liabilities reported in the capital 
long-term debt: 

Balance Balance Due Within 
9/30/08 Additions Retirements 9/30/09 One Year 

Governmental activities: 

Sales tax revenue bonds $7,980,000 $ ($385,000) $7,595,000 $375,000 

Certificates of obligation 7,585,000 6,130.000 (710,000) 13,005,000 710,000 

Unamortized premium (discount) 163,550 30,650 (19,674) 174,526 10,602 

Total bonds payable 15,728,550 6,160,650 (1 ,114,674) 20,774,526 1,095,602 

Compensated absences 17,449 22,003 (19,068) 20,384 11 ,328 

Total $15,745,999 $6,182,653 ($1,133,742) $20,794,910 $1 ,106,930 

V. OTHER INFORMATION 

A. Risk management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health benefits; and other claims of various natures. 

The City uses a medical self-insurance fund to pay medical and dental claims of the City employees and their 
covered dependents and minimize the total cost of annual medical insurance to the municipality. Medical claims 
in anyone year exceeding $65,000 per covered individual or, approximately $2,162,253 in the aggregate for 
the group, are covered through a private insurance carrier. Additionally, life insurance pol icy premiums for each 
employee are paid through the fund. The self-insurance fund is funded by operating transfers from other funds 
and charges to employees for extended benefits at their option. The City does not believe there are material 
claims incurred but not reported as of September 30, 2009. 
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The City uses a Self-Insurance and Risk Management Program (as permitted by law and its home rule charter) 
to insure itself against the various risks of liability or loss to which it is exposed , either through an insurance 
provider or through a defined self-insurance program. The City issued certificates of obligation, based on an 
actuarial analysis, to fund a self-insured workers compensation plan. Under this plan, worker compensation 
insurance is provided in accordance with State statutes to all City employees. To protectthe assets of the plan 
from a catastrophic claim the City has purchased stop loss coverage in the amount of $200,000 per occurrence 
with a cap of $600,000 per year. 

The Worker's Compensation fund (an internal service fund) accounts for the activity of this plan. The City 
establishes claim liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims reported but unsettled and of 
claims incurred but not reported . Any claims incurred and not reported, are not believed to be significantto the 
City's financial statements. 

Employee Benefits Worker's Compensation 

2009 2008 2009 2008 

Claims payable beginning of the year $176,172 $147,395 $10,697 $2,517 

Claims incurred 2,427,029 2,542,806 90,752 104,293 

Payment on claims (2,429,498) (2,514,029) (83,995) (96,113) 

$173,703 $176,172 $17,454 $10,697 

Commercial insurance is purchased for the other risks of losses to which the City is exposed . There have been 
no significant reductions in insurance coverage and settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage 
for the current year or the three prior years. 

B. North Texas Municipal Water District 

The District is a conservation and reclamation district and political subdivision of the State of Texas, created 
and functioning under Chapter 62, Acts of 1951 , 52nd Legislature, Regular SeSSion , as amended, originally 
compiled as Vernon's Article 8270-141 (the "Act") , pursuant to Article 16, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution. 
The District comprises all of the territory of its member cities, viz., Allen, Garland , Princeton, Plano, Mesquite, 
Wylie, Rockwall, Farmersville, McKinney, Richardson, Forney and Royse City (the "Member Cities"). The District 
was created for the purpose of providing a source of water supply for municipal , domestic and industrial use 
and for the treatment processing and transportation of such water to its Member Cites and to its other 
customers located in North Central Texas, all within the Dallas Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area. 

Under the Act, including specifically Section 27 thereof, and under the Constitution and Statutes of the State 
ofTexas, the District has broad powers to (1) impound, control, store, preserve, treat, transmit and use storm 
and flood water, the water of rivers and streams and underground water, for irrigation, power and all other 
useful purposes and to supply water for municipal, domestic, power, industrial and commercial uses and 
purposes and all other beneficial uses and purposes; and (2) collect, transport, process, treat, dispose of, and 
control all municipal, domestic, industrial or commercial waste whether in fluid , solid or composite state, 
including specifically the control, abatement or reduction of all types of pollution . The City retains no ongOing 
financial interest equity investments and/or responsibilities for the District other than the contractual 
arrangements discussed more fully herein. 

The District has long-term contracts with the City to supply treated water and sewer treatment. The City's water 
contract with the District provides that the City pay a predetermined annual amount for treated water in twelve 
monthly installments. The amount of this annual payment is based upon an annually established rate per 
thousand gallons and the largest annual amount of water consumption of past years. The City owns one 
sewage treatment facility , Squabble Creek and, in 1978 entered into an agreement with the District for the 
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construction of a second facility, Buffalo Creek. Under the terms of this agreement, the District issued 
contractually secured bonds in its name to construct and operate this sewage disposal plant for the City. In 
subsequent years, similar contractual agreements have been made to enable NTMWD to expand the sewage 
treatment facilities and continue to provide sewage treatment services to the City. Under the terms of these 
contracts, the City's payments, which began when the facilities were first utilized, are equal to the operating and 
maintenance expenses for the next ensuing calendar year, as shown in the Annual Budget. The contracts 
further provide that the debt service payments will be equal to the principal and/or interest coming due on the 
bonds on the next succeeding interest payment date, plus the fees and charges of the Paying Agent and the 
Registrar. 

These contractual obligations have been included as capital lease obligations in amounts equal to the bonds 
outstanding under these agreements. Accordingly, the related sewage treatment facilities have been capitalized 
and are being depreciated over the estimated life of the facilities. 

The outstanding principal balance on the bond issues as of September 30, 2009, is $7,431,754. See Note IV 
E for the annual requirements to amortize the bonds as of September 30, 2009. 

With respect to the ground storage reservoir discussed above, the Cities of Rockwall and Heath are 
contractually obligated to make timely payments to the District representing 66.67% and 33.33%, respectively, 
of the related operating expenses and debt service payments. While the City antiCipates its share of these 
payments to be 66.67%, the Cities of Rockwall and Heath are each contractually obligated to make any 
payments which the other party is required, but is unable, to make to the District. 

C. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by such agencies. 
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected may constitute a liability of the applicable funds . 
The amounts, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time 
although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently 
determinable, it is the opinion of the City's management that the resolution of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

As described in Note 5 above, the general revenues of the City are contingently liable for the $26,025,178 
payable in General Obligation Bonds which are currently outstanding and recorded as obligations of the 
Enterprise Fund. 

The City contracts for garbage disposal with a third party. Under the terms of the agreement the city bills and 
collects the residential billing and remits that amount to the contracting party. The contractor bills the 
commercial customers and remits a franchise fee to the City based on total revenues received from the 
contract. 

The Rockwall Economic Development Corporation provides monetary incentives to companies to relocate 
within the City of Rockwall. At September 30, 2009, these commitments totaled $1,521,520. 

E. Employee retirement systems and pension plans 

1. Plan Description 

The City provides pension benefits for all of its fUll-time employees through a nontraditional, joint 
contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), one 
of 827 currently administered by TMRS, an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. 
The plan provisions that have been adopted by the city are within the options available within the options 
available in the governing state statutes of TMRS. 
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TMRS issues a publically available comprehensive annual financial report thai includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides detailed explanations 
of the contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the system. This report may 
be obtained by writing to TMRS, P.O. Box 149153. Austin , Texas 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; 
in addition, the report is available on TMRS' website at www.TMRS.com. 

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, with in the options available in the state 
statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows: 

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and the City­
financed monetary credits, with interest. At the date the plan began, the City granted monetary credits for 
service rendered before the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what would have been 
contributed by the employee, with interest, prior to establishment of the plan. Monetary credits for service 
since the plan began are a percent (100%) of the employee's accumulated contributions. In addition, the 
City can grant as often as annually another type of monetary credit referred to as an updated service credit 
which is a theoretical amount which, when added to the employee's accumulated contributions and the 
monetary credits for service since the plan began, would be the total monetary credits and employee 
contributions accumulated with interest if the current employee contribution rate and City matching percent 
had always been in existence and if the employee's salary had always been the average of his salary in the 
last three years that are one year before the effective date. At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the 
sum olthe employee's accumulated contributions with interest and the employer-financed monetary credits 
with interest were used to purchase an annUity. 

Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 5 or more years of service or with 20 years of service 
regardless of age. A member is vested after 5 years. The plan provisions are adopted by the governing 
body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial 
constraints also in the statutes. 

2. Contributions 

The contribution rate for the employees is 7%, and the City matching ratio is currently 2 to 1, both as 
adopted by the governing body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually 
determines the City contribution rate. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior 
service contribution rate, both of which are calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. 
The normal cost contribution rate finances the currently accruing monetary credits due tothe City matching 
percent, which are the obligation of the City as of an employee's retirement date, not at the time the 
employee's contributions are made. The normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially determined percent 
of payroll necessary to satisfy the obligation of the City to each employee at the time his/her retirement 
becomes effective. The prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (over funded) actuarial 
liability (asset) overthe remainder of the plan's 25-year amortization period. The unit credit actuarial cost 
method is used for determining the City contribution rate. Both the employees and the City make 
contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance to budget for it, there 
is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and the calendar year when 
the rate goes into effect, i.e. December 31,2007 valuation is effective for rates beginning January 2009. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit 

Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll 

Remaining Amortization 25 Years - Closed Period 

Asset Valuation Method Amortized Cost 
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Investment Rate of Return 

Projected Salary Increases 

Includes Inflation At 

Cost of Living Adjustments 

7% 

Varies by age and service 

3.0% 

0.0% 

Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress 

Actuarial Valuation Date 

Actuarial Value of Asset 

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities 

Percentage Funded 

Unfunded (Over-funded) Actuarial 

Annual Covered Payroll 

UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 

Net Pension Obligation (NPO) 

J 213J IQ8 

$22,226,74 

$35,689,69 

62.3% 

$13,462,94 

$13,582,92 

99.1% 

$ 

J213J IOZ J 213J IQ6 

$20,486,755 $17,878,974 

$32,796,027 $23,911,430 

62.5% 74.8% 

$12,309,272 $6,032,456 

$12,404,225 $10,942,328 

99.2% 55 .1% 

$ $ 

Fiscal year Ended September 30 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 

Interest on NPO 

Adjustment to the ARC 

Contributions Made (100%) 

Increase in NPO 

NPO at the End of Period 

2QQ9 

$1,743,863 

1,743,863 

1,743,863 

$ 

Texas Statewide Emergency Services Personnel Retirement Fund 

2QQ8 

$1,561 ,437 

1,561,347 

1,561,347 

$ 

2QQZ 

$1,491,116 

1,491,116 

1,491,116 

$ 

The City acts as agent for the Texas Statewide Emergency Services Personnel Retirement Fund (the "Fund") 
which is a component unit of the State of Texas. The City reimbursed the Fund $55,300 for benefits paid on 
a pay-as-you-go basis during the year in recognition of services provided to the City by volunteer emergency 
services personnel. The Fund has a board of directors not designated by City officials and is administered by 
the State Fire Fighters' Pension Commissioner. There are 37 active participants currently covered by the Fund 
and payments are being made to 15 retirees ortheir survivors. The Fund does not prepare separate financial 
statements for participating departments, however, financial statements for the Fund as a whole may be 
obtained from the administrator at Fire Fighters' Pension Commissioner, P. O. Box 12577, Austin, Texas, 78711 . 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board but not considered a part of the basic financial statements. 

77 



This page is left blank intentionally. 

78 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes, penalty and interest 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Charges for services 
Permits 
Municipal court 
Intergovemmental 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Mayor/Council 
Administration 
Finance 
Municipal court 
Police 
Fire 
Public works 
Community development 
Parks and recreation 

Total current 

Capital outlay: 
Police 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 

Total capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
.. - 0"91081 .~.. . - ~rial-

--

7,1 20 ,350 $ 7,146,000 
9,850,900 10,074,000 
2,215,000 2,411 ,000 

307,500 264,000 
756,750 944,750 
958,000 1,040,000 
353,500 358,150 
210,000 150,000 

78,000 143,000 
10,000 10,000 

21 ,860,000 ~}J,54~~00 . _._- -- _ . 

122,700 111,500 
3,074,450 3,078,350 
1,027,400 1,018,700 

325,200 321 ,100 
7,789,650 7,693,850 
1,900,200 1,674,800 
1,631 ,000 1,597,700 
1,313 ,050 1,292,200 
4 ,394,900 4,454,050 

21 ,578,550 21,242,250 

20,500 20,500 
800 800 

22,550 22,550 
- -. 43,850 43,850 - --.--

21 ,622 ,400 _ 21 ,286,100 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 237,600 1,254,800 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Transfers in 747,900 754,800 
Transfers out (1,416,150) (2,567,650) 
Total other financing sources (uses) (623,250) (1 ,812,850) 

Net change in fund balances (385,650) (558,050) 

Fund balances, October 1 8,266,814 8,266,814 
Fund balances, September 30 $ 7,881 ,164 $ 7,708,764 
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EXHIBIT B-1 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Actual (Negativ~_ 

$ 7,174,251 $ 28,251 
9 ,791 ,542 (282,458) 
2,444,296 33,296 

268,466 4,466 
1,005,541 60,791 
1,052,403 12,403 

375 ,981 17,831 
313,048 163,048 
168,992 25,992 

10,000 
·2.2~1J4 ,5.z0 63,620 

------. 

109,845 1,655 
3,069,653 8,697 

998,497 20,203 
318,467 2,633 

7,583,087 110,763 
1,615,570 59,230 
1,528,010 69,690 
1,258,030 34,170 
4 ,320,322 133,728 

20,801,481 440,769 ------

20,425 75 
735 65 

20,766 1,784 
41 ,926 __ 1,924 

--- -

__ 20,843,40~ __ 442 , 6~_ 

1,761 ,113 506,313 

754,800 
(2,486,750) (80,900) 

---(1,731 ,950) __ (80,902) 

29,163 587,213 

8,266,814 
$ 8,295,977 $ 587,213 
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
particular purposes. 

Cemetery - established to account for the annual income from the sale of plots and cemetery maintenance costs. 

Police Investigation - established to account for donations, court security fees, and forfeitures. 

Recreational Development - established to account tor the annual lease income from marinas and golf course. 

Radio System - established to account for revenues and expenditures for the support of the City's radio system. 

Street Improvements - established to account for the proceeds of street improvement assessments. 

Hotel Motel Tax - established to account for the annual income from hotel motel taxes. 

Fire Equipment - established to account for funds to be used for the purchase of fire equipment for the volunteer fire 
department. 

Aviation - established to account for funds received from airport operations and related expenses. 

Recycling - established to account for funds to be used for the City's recycling program. 

Emergency Siren - established to account for revenues accumulated and expenditures to add emergency sirens 
within the City. 

Downtown Improvement - established to account for revenues and expenditures related to the City's efforts to 
revitalize the downtown square. 

Art in Public Places - established to account for donations received for developing art displays in public areas such 
as parks. 

Special Crimes Unit - established to account for revenues and expenditures related to a county-wide crime task 
force. 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general, certificate, & 
contractual obligation bond principal and interest from governmental resources. 
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NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
(Continued) 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital projects funds are used to accountfor the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those 
financed by proprietary funds and trust funds. 

Capital Projects - established to account for miscellaneous street and drainage projects which are financed with 
contributions from the General Fund and the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation. 

Equipment Acquisition - established to account for capital equipment acquisition using operating transfers from 
benefiting funds and residual proceeds from miscellaneous debt. 

G.O. Bonds Capital Projects - established to account for street and drainage projects using proceeds from the 
issuance of bonds. 

205 Bypass Project - established to account for revenues and expenditures related to the construction of the new 205 
Bypass roadway project. 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal selVice funds are used to account for the financing of goods or selVices provided by one department or agency 
to other departments or agenCies of the government and to other government units, on a cost 
reimbursement basis . 

Employee Benefits Fund - established to account for the financing of a medical self-insurance fund to pay 
medical and dental claims of the City's employees and their covered dependents. 

Workers ' Compensat ion Fund - established to account for the costs of the workers' compensation self­
insurance program for the City . 

AGENCY FUND 

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals , private 
organizations , other governments and/or other funds . 

Special Escrow Agency Fund - established to account for developer contributions for infrastructure projects 
related to various developments to be constructed at a later date. 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 

The Rockwall Economic Deve lopment Corporation (REDC) represents the City by promoting it as a location 
for new business . It also acqu ires and develops land for that purpose. REDC collects a half-cent sales tax 
to support its activities. 

The Rockwall Technology Park Association (RTPA) provides repair and maintenance of the common area 
within the park developed by REDC. 
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EXHIBIT C-l 

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Debl 
Service Tolal 
Fund Nonmajor 

Special Harbor Capital Governmental 
Revenue Debt Projects Funds (See 

Funds Service Funds Exhibil A-3) _._-- - -- - -~-----

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 121 ,554 $ $ 237,622 $ 359,176 
Investments 2,490,909 5,537,641 8,028,550 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) : 

Accounts receivable 80,292 236,573 450,225 767,090 
Assessments receivable 149,589 149,589 
Other receivables 4,670 4,670 

Due from other govemments 37 ,080 37 ,080 
Total Assels $ 2,847,014 $ 273,653 $ 6,225,488 $ 9,346,155 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 203,299 $ $ 74,449 $ 277,748 

Deferred revenue 193,797 193,797 

Due to othar funds 50,313 273,712 324,025 

Total Liabililies ----"" 4 47,409 -.- -273,712 - --- -74,449 795,570 

Fund balances (deficils): 
Reserved for: 

Debt service (59) (59) 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Special revenue funds 2,399,605 2,399,605 
Capital projects funds 6,151 ,039 6,151 ,039 
Total fund balances (deficits) 2,399,603_ (59) 6,151 ,039 8,550,585 

Tolal Liabililies and Fund Balances $ 2,847,014 $ 273,653 $ 6,225,488 $ 9,346,155 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes, penalty and inlerest 
Sales taxes 
Charges for services 
Municipal court 
Intergovemmental 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
CUrrent: 

Administration 
Finance 
Police 
Fire 
Parks and recreation 

Total current 

Capital outlay: 
Administration 
Finance 
Police 
Fire 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 

Total capital outlay 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest 
Bond issuance cost 

Total debt service: 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Proceeds of long-term debt 
Premium on bonds issued 
Discount on bonds issued 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 

Special 
Revenue 

Funds 

$ $ 
208,038 
469,680 

4 ,501 
39,566 
15,473 

106,438 
46,834 

--=-:=-: ~90 ,53Q. 

210,676 
267,939 
192,535 

2,989 
173,202 

__ ,,-84. 7,341 

142,716 

63,901 
114,800 

113.491 
434,908 

1,282,249 

(391,719) 

161,750 
(515,700) 

_ (353,950) 

(745,669) 

3,145,274 

Debt 
Service 
Fund 

·-- Harbo r ---

Deft 
Service - - -----

534,661 
264,821 

799,482 

240,000 
653,993 

$ 

Capital 
Projects 
Funds - -_.-

-

13,200 
3,884 

458,481 
1,800,000 
2,275,565 

78,376 

78,376 

118,287 
78,866 

174,297 
1,220,786 

90,063 

47,176 
893,993- :"::'-=- :~~!76 

893,993 1,807,851 

(94,511) 467,714 

50,000 313,350 
(349,350) 

5,520,000 
73,591 

(40,774) 
50,000 5,516,817 

(44,511) 5,984,531 

44,452 166,508 
Fund balances (deficits), September 30 $ 2,399 ,605 $ 6,151,039 (59) $=~~~ 

85 

$ 

EXHIBIT C-2 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 

$ 

Funds (See 
Exhibit A-5) 

534,661 
472,859 
469,680 

4 ,501 
52,766 
19,357 

564,919 
1,846,834 
3,965,577 

289 ,052 
267,939 
192,535 

2,989 
173,202 
925,717 

261,003 
78,866 

238,198 
1,335,586 

90,Q63 
113,491 

2,117,207 

240,000 
653,993 

47,176 
941 ,169 

3,984,093 

(18,516) 

525,100 
(865,050) 

5,520,000 
73,591 

(40,774) 
5,212,867 

5,194,351 

3,356,234 
8,550,585 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for un collectibles): 

Accounts receivable 
Assessments receivable 
Other receivables 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabil ities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

Fund balances: 
UnreseNed 

Total fund balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

"c:~metery 

$ 1,146 
137,949 

$ --139,095 

$ 

139,095 
139,095 

$ 139,095 -

86 

Police Recreational Radio 
Inv~~_ti~~~i~ [)evelopmen~ _ Syst~m 

$ 1,365 $ 2,226 $ 450 
214,756 195,042 20,000 

24,545 

$ =- ;}4g,~6~ $ _~_~" _ l~rt :26.a~ $ ~~20,450 

$ 26,278 $ 40,681 $ 126 

---26,278 40,681 126 ----- --_. 

214,388 156,587 20,324 
214,388 - - -"156,587 20,324 ------

$ ~" 240,666 $ 19~,2_~~_ $ 20,450 



Street Hotel 
Improvements Motel Tax 

. -- ----

$ 74,069 $ $ 
1,403,630 1,912 

55,747 
149,589 

$ - \ 627,288 $ :~~-~:5.?,659 $ 

$ 131,019 $ $ 
149,589 

50,313 
___ ~80,608 50,313 ---_.- ---,--- ---

1,346,680 7,346 
1,346 ,680 - - - 7,346 

$ 1,627,288 $ 57,65i1. $ 

Fire 
_ EquiplTlen!.. _ 

4,531 
171,059 

~--- 175,590 

----------
-----_ ... -

175,590 
___ 175 , 5~1!.. 

175,590 

87 

Aviation -------

$ 16 ,776 
36,999 

$ 53,775 
---- -

$ 

---_._-
-- -_.- - --

53,775 
_____ 53,77~ 

$ 53,775 

EXHIBIT C-3 

Page 1 of 2 

___ R.".cycling 

$ 2,406 
33,140 

4,670 
$ 40,216 

$ 

40,216 
40,216 

$ 40,216 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Accounts receivable 
Assessments receivable 
Other receivables 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities : 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 
Due to other funds 

Total Liabilities 

Fund balances: 
UnreseNed 

Total fund balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

88 

Emergency Downtown 
Siren Improvement _ 

8,641 $ 7,380 
14,999 13,168 

=~=-)3,640 $ ~ -'::-:::_20 :~48 

$ 

-- -------

23,640 20,548 
____ 23.,640 20,548 

23,640 $ 20,548 
-



Art in Special 
Public Crimes 
Places Unit --

$ 985 $ 1,579 
248,255 

$ 985 $ - 249,834 
==---==--= 

$ $ 5,195 
44,208 

49,403 
~----- --- -------

985 200,431 
-------

985 200,431 ------
$ 985 $ 249,834 

89 

EXHIBIT C-3 

Page 2 of 2 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Special 
Revenue 

Funds (See 
__ Exhi~_~!2_ 

$ 121 ,554 
2,490,909 

80,292 
149,589 

4 ,670 
~- --

$ 0:= 2 ~8~~_1_~ 

$ 203,299 
193,797 

50,313 
447,409 

2,399,605 
2,399,605 

$ 2,847,014 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Cemetery 
Revenues: 

Sales taxes $ 
Charges for services 375 
Municipal court 
Intergovernmental 
Interest income 687 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 
T atal revenues 1 ~ 062 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Finance 
Police 
Fire 
Parks and recreation 800 

Total current ----- 800 

Capital outlay: 
Administration 
Police 
Fire 
Parks and recreation ----------

Total capital outlay 

Total expenditures 800 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 262 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 262 

Fund balances, October 1 138,833 
Fund balances, September 30 $ 139,095 

90 

Police Recreational Radio 
__ Inv"sti[~on _ _[),,-ve!opment System 

$ $ $ 
86,801 287,591 

4,501 
39,566 

1,368 1,215 
1,192 

12,256 1,333 33,134 
--144,492 291 ,33!_ 33,134 

157,556 

38,018 

172,402 -
_=-38-;-018-. 172,402 157,556 - ------

63,901 

113,491 

=--=---=- 63,9.0!.. 113,491 

101 ,919 285,893 157,556 

42,573 5,438 (124,422) 

120,000 
(115,200) (50,000) 
(115,200) (50,000) 120,000 

(72,627) (44,562) (4,422) 

287,015 201 ,149 24,746 
$ 214,388 $ --- -- 156,587 $ 20 ,324 



Sireet Hotel 
Impr~emenls _ Molel Tax 

-------_."-

$ $ 208,038 

8,729 10 
23,684 

-- -----

32,413 208,048 
-----

27,881 
267,939 

27,881 267,939 

142,716 

--~716 
--------

-------

170,597 267,939 

(138,184) (59,891 ) 

31,750 
(306,500) 
(274,750) 

(412,934) (59,891) 

1,759,614 67,237 
$ 1,346,680 $ 7,346 

Fire 
_ _ ~quipment 

$ 
93,600 

1,140 
3,334 

---- --. - --

98,074 
---- ---

2,989 

- --2 ,989 
--- - --

114,800 

114,800 

117,789 --------- - -

(19,715) 

(10,000) 
(10,000) 

(29,715) 

205,305 
$ - - 175,590-

91 

Aviation 
-- -- - -- -

$ 

184 
10,437 

- ----- 10,621 

10,184 

==10,184 

----- -

___ ~0,184 

437 

10,000 

---- 10,000 

10,437 

43,338 
$ 53,775 

EXHIBIT C-4 

Page 1 of 2 

~l'c1i'2lL_ 

$ 

264 
26,460 

26,724 

15,055 

15,055 

15,055 

11,669 

(34,000) 
(34,000) 

(22,331) 

62,547 - -
$ 40,216 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Sales taxes 
Charges for seNices 
Municipal court 
Intergovernmental 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Finance 
Police 
Fire 
Parks and recreation 

Total current 

Capital outlay: 
Administration 
Police 
Fire 
Parks and recreation 

Total capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (defiCiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

$ 

Emergency 
Siren 

1,313 

75 

---~- f, :i-S8 
--~-----

1,388 

1,388 

22,252 

$===23~,64~0 

92 

$ 

Downtown 
J .r:nprovement 

66 

---"--~-66 

66 

66 

20,482 

$==~2~0~,5:;:48~ 



Art in 
Public 
Places 

- .- - -

$ 

111 
----- 1'f1 

111 

111 

Special 
Crime 
Unit 

$ 

1,735 
41 ,331 

4 3:066 ----

154,517 

15<517 
- --------

154,517 
---------- -

(111,451) 

(111,451) 

311 ,882 
$ -- -~-200 ,43f 

93 

$ 

EXHIBIT C-4 

Page 2 of 2 

Total 
Nonmajor 
Special 

Revenue 
Funds (See 

_ Exh~b~t~ 

208,038 
469,680 

4 ,501 
39,566 
15,473 

106,438 
46 ,834 

--890,530 

210,676 
267,939 
192,535 

2,989 
173,202 
847,341 

142,716 
63,901 

114,800 
11 3,491 

____ ~34 ,908 

1 ,282,249 

(391,719) 

161,750 
(515,700) 

___ . (353,950) 

(745,669) 

. __ ..;;3,145,274 
$ 2~399 ,605 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
CEMETERY FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Charges for selYices 
Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
CUrrent: 

Parks and recreation 
Total current 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

$ 3,700 
900 

----- ;(600 

--------

----- --

4,600 

138,833 
$ 143,433 

94 

Actual 

$ 375 
687 

____ j :P~~ 

800 
-800-

800 
-----

262 

138,833 
$ 139,095 

EXHIBIT C-5 

Variance 
Positive 

_ (Negati~L_ 

$ (3,325) 
(213) 

----(3,538) 

(800) 
_.<800) 

(800) 

(4 ,338) 

$ (4,338) 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
POLICE INVESTIGA TION FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Municipal court 
Intergovernmental 
Interest income 
Donations 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
CUrrent: 

Police 
Total current 

Capitat outtay: 
Police 

Totat capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

other financing sources (uses) : 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

_ ~udget _ 

$ 85,450 
3,700 

39,700 
2,000 
9,450 

'140,300 

39,800 
- 39,8015 

- --.~----

69,050 
-69,050 

108,850 

31,450 

(115,200) 
__ ~(~1 !5,200) 

(83,750) 

287,015 
$ 203,265 

95 

EXHIBIT C-6 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual ~_ (Ne_gative) ----- -

$ 86,801 $ 1,351 
4,501 801 

39,566 (134) 
1,368 (632) 

12,256 2,806 
144,492 ~_ 4,192 

38,018 1,782 
- -38,018 ~-~ -- 1,782 

--~- - .. _- .. - - - - ------~ 

63,901 5,149 
-- 63,901 5,149 

101,919 6,931 

42,573 11 ,123 

(115,200) 
(115,200) - ------

(72,627) 11 ,123 

287,015 
$ 214,388 $ 11,123 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
RECREA T10NAL DEVELOPMENT FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Parks and recreation 
Total current 

Capital outlay: 
Parks and recreation 

Total capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

$ 

. . .. Budjl"t ... 

288,300 
1,600 

289,900 

196,000 
196,000 

116,000 
116,000 

312,000 ----- ----

(22,100) 

(50,000) 
_~(50 ,000) 

(72 ,100) 

201 ,149 
$ _~ ._ 129,049 

96 

$ 

Actual 

287,591 
1,215 
1,192 
1,333 

~'- 291 , 331 
-... _-

172,402 
.~_172 ,402 

113,491 
==~113,49i 

285,893 - -- --------

5,438 

(50,000) 
(50,000) 

(44,562) 

$ 
201 ,149 
156,587 

EXHIBIT C-7 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ (709) 
(385) 

1,192 
1,333 
1,431 

23,598 
23,598 

2,509 
2,509 

26,107 

27,538 

27,538 

$,=="",2~7, 5",,3~8 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
RADIO SYSTEM 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Donations 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Total current 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

B~J1e_t _ 

$ 33,100 
33,105 - ------

163,150 
163,150 - -_. __ ._ -

163,150 

(130,050) 

120,000 
- - 120,000 

(10,050) 

24,746 
$ ~=~=~. 14~~6 

97 

EXHIBtT C·8 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual __ (!IJ!'ll~.tive) _ 

$ $ 34 -- - - .. ~ 

157,556 5,594 
=· 157,5~§ =-==--5,594 

. 157,556 5,594 

(124,422) 5,628 

120,000 
... _- - fzo,ooo 

.. _-
(4,422) 5,628 

24,746 
$ .=. -.20,32.1. $ 

-- -
5,628 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Total current 

Capital outlay: 
Administration 

Total capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

Budget 

$ 11 ,000 
24,050 
35,050 - - -

36,500 
36;500 ------- -

330,800 
330,800 

3fl2., :J.°O 

(332,250) 

31,750 

-----31)50-
------ -

(300,500) 

1,759,614 
$ 1,459,114 

98 

EXHIBIT C-9 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual _ J Negative) - - - - ---
$ 8,729 $ (2,271) 

23,684 (366) 
- - 32,413 (2,637) 

27,881 8,619 
_ __ :_p~881 . - 8,619 

142,716 188,084 

1~:1,2.!§' 188,084 

170,597 196,703 --_. _- - - --

(138 ,184) 194,066 

31,750 
(306,500) 306,500 
(274,7501 306,500 

(412 ,934) (112,434) 

1,759,614 
$ - 1,346,680 $ (112,434) 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
HOTEL MOTEL TAX 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Sales taxes 
Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Finance 
Total current 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

Bud~et 

$ 259,000 
1,000 

26Q:boO 

270,880 
270;880 

-- ------

__ 270,880 

(10,880) 

67,237 
$ --- 56,357 

99 

EXHIBIT C-l0 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual _JNegativ~ __ 
- - -

$ 208,038 $ (50,962) 
10 (990) 

---208,048 (51,952) 
- - - --- -

267,939 2,941 
_ __ ~~67,93~ ----- - 2,94f 

----- - --

267,939 2,941 - - -------

(59,891) (49,011) 

_ _ 67,237 
$ 7,346 $ (49,011) 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Charges for services 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Fire 
Total current 

Capital outlay: 
Fire 

Total capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

_~dget __ ~ 

$ 93,600 
1,500 
3,300 

250 
98,650 

11,000 
11 ,000 

146,900 
- -- 1 46,900 
------~-

157,900 

(59 ,250) 

(10,000) 
___ (10 ,000) 

(69,250) 

205,305 
$ 136,055 

100 

EXHIBIT C-11 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual IN-,,gativ~ - --._-_ .. --

$ 93,600 $ 
1,140 (360) 
3,334 34 

(250) 
---98,Q74 (576) 

2,989 8,011 
2 , 98~_ 8,011 

114,800 32,100 
--:-- 1 1~~0 32 ,100 

117,789 40,111 

(19,715) 39,535 

(10,000) --------
(10,000) 

(29,715) 39,535 

205,305 
$ 175,590 $ 39,535 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
A VIA TlON FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Intergovemmental 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Total current 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

__ ~udget _ 

$ 900 
250 

11 ,200 
12,350 

13,600 
. 13,600 

13,600 

(1 ,250) 

10,000 
10,000 ---

8,750 

43,338 
$ 52,088 

-

101 

EXHIBIT C-12 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual _ Ji'legat!v"L 
--- -~-~ 

$ $ (900) 
184 (66) 

10,437 (763) 
10,621 (1 ,729) -_._---

10,184 3,416 
-10,184 -- - 3,416 

- -----

10,184 3,416 - -- -- -. 

437 1,687 

10,000 
10,000 - ------ -

10,437 1,687 

43,338 
$ 53,775 $ 1,687 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
RECYCLING FUND 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures : 
Current: 

Administration 
Total current 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances , September 30 

.§udget ___ 

$ 350 
25,000 
25,350 -

15,100 
" 15,100 - --- - --

15,100 - - - -

10,250 

(34,000) 
(34,000) 

(23,750) 

62,547 
$ 38,797 

102 

EXHIBIT C-13 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual (Negative) - ---- -

$ 264 $ (86) 
26,460 1,460 

_ _ 26,7?~ 1,374 

15,055 45 
15,055 

" - --~ 

---- .. 

15,055 45 

11,669 1,419 

(34,000) 
(34,000) 

(22,331) 1,419 

62,547 
$ 40,216 $ 1,419 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
SPECIAL CRIMES UNIT 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Interest income 
Mjscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Police 
Total current 

Capital outlay: 
Police 

Total capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

B~dfl.et. _ 

$ 250 
29,800 
30,050 

175,300 
175,300-

3,300 
---- 3,300 --_._- --

178,600 

(148,550) 

311,882 
$ 163,332 -

103 

EXHIBIT C-14 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual (~':llative) ._ ._-- -

$ 1,735 $ 1,485 
41 ,331 11 ,531 

--43,tJ66 . .:..: 13,01~ 

154,517 20,783 
__ ~,517 20,783 

3,300 -- --- - -----
3,300 _ .. _- ._ -

. ___ ~ 5~!517_ 24,083 

(111.451) 37,099 

311,882 
$ 200,431 $ ----. 37,099 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes, penally and interest 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 
Fiscal charges 

Total debt service: 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

Budget 

$ 8,654,200 
10,000 
60,000 

8,724,200 

4,430,550 
4,175,050 

12,000 
8,617,600 

8,617,600 - --- -

106,600 

(50,000) 
(50,000) 

56,600 

790,752 
$ 847,352 

104 

EXHIBIT C-15 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual ~ _INegativ~ .. ----~-.. -

$ 8,698 ,663 $ 44,463 
9,246 (754) 

118,248 58,248 
8,826,157 101,957 

4,430,540 10 
4,062,552 112,498 

15,284 (3,284) 
= !l,508 ,37§ 109,224 

__ 8,508,376 109,224 

317 ,781 211 ,181 

18,762 18,762 
(50,000) 
(31,23.!l1 18,762 

286,543 229,943 

790,752 
$ 1,077,295 $ 229,943 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
HARBOR DEBT SERVICE 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes, penalty and interest 
Sales taxes 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Total debt service: 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Transfers in 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

~~g~ 

$ 569,650 
283,600 
853,250 

240,000 
654 ,000 
894,000 

894,000 

(40,750) 

50,000 
50,000 

9,250 

44,452 
$ -- ---=53,702 
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EXHIBIT C-16 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual _ j Negative) ----_._---

$ 534,661 $ (34,989) 
264,821 (18,779) 

_.199,482 __ j~3 , 768) 

240,000 
653,993 7 
893,993 7 ---_ .. _- -

893,993 7 
---."--

(94,511) (53,761) 

50,000 
50,000 

(44,511) (53,761) 

44,452 
$ (59) $ --- - (53,761) 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles): 

Accounts receivable 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Unreserved 

Total fund balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Capital 
__ Proje~ 

$ 206,391 
3,042,885 

450,000 
$ - .3,699,276 

- -- .. 

$ 

3,699,276 
_ . ~,699,276. 

$ - 3,699,276 
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EXHIBIT C-17 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Capital 
Projects 

Equipment Funds (See 
_ AcqLJisition _ _ _ _E2'~it C-1) .. 

$ 31,231 $ 237,622 
2,494,756 5,537,641 

225 450,225 
$ - - 2,526,2_1~ $~ -J;~5,4~~_ 

$ 74,449 $ 74,449 
74,449 -== 74,449 - ----

2,451,763 6,151 ,039 
2,451 ,763 __ _ 6,152 ,039 

$ 2,526,212_ $ 6,225,488 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
CUrrent: 

Administration 
Total current 

Capital oullay: 
Administration 
Finance 
Police 
Fire 
Public works 

Total capital outlay 

Debt service: 
Bond issuance cost 

Total debt service: 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Proceeds of long-term debt 
Premium on bonds issued 
Discount on bonds issued 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

$ 

Capital 
Pro~ct~ _ 

1,447 
450,000 

1,800,000 
_ --=2,-=,251 ,447 

78,376 - -- 78,376 

118,287 

14,876 
----133,163 

14,199 
14,199 

225,738 

2,025,709 

130,000 
(349,350) 

1,571,869 
21,965 

(12,010) 
-- "1,362,474 

3,388,183 

311 ,093 
$ ---3,699,276 
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Equipment 
Acquisitioll _ 

$ 13,200 
2,437 
8,481 

____ ~4,118 

78,866 
174,297 

1,220,786 
75,187 

--- -1]49,136 

32,977 
32,977 

1,582,1 13 

(1,557,995) 

183,350 

3,948,131 
51 ,626 

(28,764) 
4,154,343_ 

2,596,348 

(144,585) 
$ 2,451 ,763 

-

Total 
Nonmajor 

Capital 
Projects 

Funds (See 
_~h~i~2) _ 

$ 13,200 
3,884 

458,481 
1,800,000 

__ 2,275,565 

78,376 
---- - 78,376 

-- - -_. __ .-

118,287 
78,866 

174,297 
1,220,786 

90,063 
---( 682,299 

47,176 
=---=--47,176 

" _ _ 1,807,851 

467,714 

313,350 
(349,350) 

5,520,000 
73,591 

(40,774) 
__5,516,817 

5,984,531 

166,508 
$ 6,151,039 

EXHIBIT C-18 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

ASSETS 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Other receivables 

Total current assets 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to other funds 

Total current liabilities 
Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS (DEFICITS) 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets (Deficits) 

$ 

Employee 
Benefits 

18,698 
17,613 
92,797 

129,108 
_ _ 12~ ,108 

339,309 
217,415 
556,724 
556,724_ 

(427,616) 
$ (427,616) 

108 

$ 

Workers' 
_Compensation 

10,231 
1,077,611 

1,087,842 
1,087,842 

17,454 

- - - 1],454 
- --- 17,454" 
------

1,070,388 
$ 1,070,388 

$ 

Total 
Internal 
Service 

Funds (See 
Exhibit A-7) 

28,929 
1,095,224 

92,797 
1,216,950 

___ l ,216,95.Q 

356,763 
217,415 
574,178 
574,178 -----

642,772 
$ 642,772 

EXHIBIT C·19 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for services 
Re;nsurance reimbursememt 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Contractual services 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous income 

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Net Income (Loss) before Operating Transfers 

TRANSFERS AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS: 
Transfers in 

Total Transfers and Capital Contributions 
Change in net assets 

Net assets, October 1 
Net assets, September 30 

Employee 
Benefits 

$ 463,195 
245,543 
708,738 

--- ---

2,863,517 
- - - 2,863,517 

___ (2, 1~4,-",-",{) 

7,473 

7,473 
___ j2,1~7 , 306) 

1,995,500 
1,995,500 

-- - (151,806) 

(275,810) 
$ (427,616) 
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Total 
Internal 
Service 

Workers' Funds (See 
Compensation _ J'xhibit_A~8) _ 

$ $ 463,195 
245,543 

-~---- -

708,738 
---~-.-.-

199,056 3,062,573 
-- -

199,056 ___ _ -3,062,573 
- -- - -- --

(199,056) (2,353,835) 

5,854 13,327 
8,828 8,828 

14,682 22,155 
(184,374) (2,331,680) 

30,000 2,025,500 
--- 30,000 2,025,500 

(154,374) (306,180) 

1,224,762 948,952 
$ 1,070,388 $ 642,772 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash Received from Customers 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities: 
Payments Made to Olher Funds 
Cash Received from Other Funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital 
Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities : 
Purchase of Investment Securities 
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of Securities 
Interest and Dividends on Investments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 

Cash Equivalents Included in Investments: 
Unrestricted 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 
Provided by Operating Activities: 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net 

Cash Provided by Operaling Activities 
Miscellaneous income 

Change in Assets and Liabilities: 
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables 
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Increase (Decrease) in Bank Overdraft 

Tolal Adjustments 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Employee 
Benefits - - - - _ ._--

$ 654,269 
(2,843,617) 
(2,189,348) 

2,212,915 

2,212,915 ----~~----

__ 7,473 
7,473 

31,040 
5,271 

$ ---- 36,311 

$ 17,613 

$ (2,154,779) 

(54,469) 
19,900 

---(34,569) 

$ (2,189,348) 
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EXHIBIT C-21 

Total 
Internal 
Service 

Workers' Funds (See 

~c:>~pe!:l~at~.~~ Exhibi!~~L 

$ 8,828 $ 663,097 
(192,454) (3,036,071 ) 

--('r83,626) (2,372,974) 

_ __ 30,000 2,242,915 

6,135 13,608 
----- 6,135 13,608 

(147,491) (116,451 ) 
1,235,333 1,240,604 

$ 1,087,842 $ 1,124,153 

$ 1 ,077 ,6~ 1 $ 1,095,224 

$ __ ~99 ,0561 $ (2,353,835) 

8,828 8,828 

(54,469) 
6,602 26,502 

15,430 (19,139) 
$ (183,626) $ (2,372,974) 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
SPECIAL ESCROW AGENCY FUND 
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

ASSETS 
Cash $ 
Investments 

Balance 
October 1, 

2008 

199 $ 
1,717,589 

25,183 

Additions Deductions 

3,415,542 $ 3,390,320 
4 ,357,646 4,732,438 

396 25,579 Accrued interest receivable 
Total Assets $ 1,742,971 $ --- - -7~773,584 $ 8,148,331, 

LIABILITIES 
Due to developers 

Total Liabilities 

_ .. 

$ 1,742,971 $ 
$==-=·-·~1 ,7~~!9~1 $= 
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:=----- :=-"--:. 

187,017 $ 561 ,769 
-- - 187.lR7 $ -------56'G6§ 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT C-22 

Balance 
September 30, 

2009 

25,421 
1,342,797 

1,368,218 

$ 1,368,219 
$~- ----1.368,219 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORA TION 
DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2009 

Revenues. 
Sales taxes 
Charges for SeAl/ceS 

Interest income 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Tolal current 

Capital outlay: 
Admmistration 

Tota l cap~a l oullay 

Debt service: 
Pn'ncipal 
Interest 
Fiscal charges 
Bond issuance cost 

Total debt service: 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses) ' 
Proceeds of long·tenn debt 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances. October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

Budget 

$ 3.309.400 
460,200 

86.000 
3.855,600 

971.400 
971 ,400 

5.058,000 
5.058,000 

1.095,000 
996.163 

3.500 
138,800 

2,233,463 

8,262,863 

(4.407,263) 

6.268.710 
6.268,710 

1.861.447 

16.767.093 
S 18.628,640 
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EXHIBIT C·23 

Vanance 
Positive 

Actual (Negative) 

$ 3,300.451 $ (8.949) 
4,236 (455.964) 

94.774 8,774 
3,399.461 (456,139) 

879.836 91.564 
879,836 91.564 

2.147.960 2.910.040 
2.147,960 2,910.040 

1.095,000 
943,226 52.937 

3,322 178 
100,159 38,641 

2,141,707 91,756 

5,169.503 3,093,360 

(1 ,770 .042) 2.637.221 

6.130,000 (138,710) 
6.130,000 138,710 

4,359.958 2.498,511 

16,767,093 
S 21 .127.051 $ 2,498~511 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
ROCKWALL TECHNOLOGY PARK ASSOCIATION 
DISCRETE COMPONENT UNIT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Revenues. 
Interest Income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Administration 
Total current 

Capital outlay: 

Total expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, October 1 
Fund balances, September 30 

Budget 

$ 1,500 
181,900 
183.400 

181 ,900 
181,900 

181,900 

1,500 

50,331 
$ 51 ,831 
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EXHIBIT C-24 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual (Negahve) 

$ 402 $ (1,098) 
146,625 (35,275) 
147,027 (36,373) 

142,1 92 39,708 
142,192 39,708 

142,192 39,708 

4,835 3,335 

50,331 
$ 55 ,166 $ 3 ,335 
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Capital Assets Used in the 
Operation of Governmental Funds 

115 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMPARA T/VE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE OF 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 AND 2008 

General fixed assets: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 

Total governmental funds capital assets 

Investment in general fixed assets by source: 
Bond proceeds 
General govemment 
Grants and entitlements 
Developer contribuUons 

Total investmenl in governmental funds capital assels 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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2009 2008 ----- - --- - - -.- - ._-

5,692,561 $ 5,692,561 
61,559,537 44,835,698 
12,465,268 10,554,952 
25,208,584 24,074,474 
12,574,777 11,415,874 

122,036,931 112,332,202 --239,537,658 $ 208,905,761 

119,355,741 $ 96,921 ,882 
42,062,576 40,155,136 

2,177,098 2,141,475 
75,942,243 69,687,268 

239,537,658 $ 208,905,761 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY OF 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Eu~n and Aclil1ily land 

General govenment $ 2,900,172 $ 

Public works 273,803 

Public safety 825,188 

Recreational/development 1,693,398 

Fire equipment 

Total Governmental Capital Ass, $ 5,692,561 $ 

Construction 
in Progress Buildings 

61 ,559,537 $ 5,704,789 $ 

324,434 

2,118,795 

2,272,730 

~_2_,044,52o. 

61 ,559,537 $ 12,465,268 $ 
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EXHIBIT C-26 

Improvements Machinery 
Other Than and 
Buildings Equ ipme~_ 

I I 
Infrastructu~ __ _ Totat.. ___ 1 

2,933,693 $ 2,989,895 $ $ 76,088,086 1 

719,654 

12,802 

21,542,435 

1,296,411 

2,355,575 

1,290,040 

4,642,856 

122,036,931 

I 
-- I 

I 

--I 
-~---- - --- ---- ---

1 

124,651 ,233 ! 

5,312,360 I 
__ i 

26,798,603 1 
-- I 

6,687,376 
---------

25,208,584 $ 12,574,777 $ 122,036,931 i $ 239,537,658 1 
=-~--= =~~~cT~ ~-



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY OF 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Capital 
Assets 

October 1, 
Function and Activity 2008 

General govenment $ 57,270,178 $ 

Public works 114,178,816 

Public Safety 5,255,882 

Recreationldevelopment 26,399,830 

Fire Equipment 5,801,055 
Total governmental funds 

Capital Assets $ 2Q~,905, 761 $ 

Additions 

22,984,331 

6,678,033 

268,699 

88,733 

991,024 

31,010,829_ 

EXHIBIT C-27 

~ Capilal 

Assets 
September 30, 

Deductions Transfers 2009 

(21,325) $ (4,163,817j $ 76,069,367 

3 ' 794,38_~ I 124,651,234 

(212,221) 5,312,360 

(59,391) 369,432 1 26,798,604 

(85,986) ___ -- _ _ ~_6J06,093J 

- / $ 

I 

j378,923) $ 239,537,658 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City of Rockwall, Texas's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information 
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health. 

Contents Page 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the 
City's ability to generate its property and sales taxes. 

Debl Capacily 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's 
current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
how the City's financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and 
with other governments. 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources to help the 
reader understand how the City's financial information relates to the services the City 
provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in Ihese schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-1 
NET ASSETS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Governmental activities 
Invested in capital assets. net of related debt $ 88,367,580 $ 63,546,273 $ 49,487,300 $ 34,020,634 $ 41 ,346,180 $ 47,695,043 $ 43,120,444 $ - $ - $ 
Restricted 2,306,529 14,222,187 23,258,947 37,748,076 17,051,680 5,897,961 8,354,614 
Unrestricted 12,955,777 13,643,810 13,386,297 11 ,683,150 11 ,850,426 10,242,495 9,975,317 

Total governmental activities net assets $ 103,629,886 $ 91,412,270 $ 86,132,544 $ 83,451 ,860 $ 70,248,286 $ 63,835,499 $ 61 ,450,375 $ - $ - $ 

Business-type activities 
Invested in capita l assets, net of related debt $ 53,418,392 $ 48,127,382 $ 47,893,027 $ 41 ,923,596 $ 37,368,956 $ 38,406,139 $ 32,724,578 $ - $ - $ 

Restricted 7,568,701 17,888,236 14,620,878 18,060,049 18,350,884 11 ,698,161 15,635,741 

Unrestricted 6,162,163 5,283,929 5,463,619 7,081 ,727 7,475,827 9,457,896 3,746,526 

Total business-type activities net assets $ 67,149,256 $ 71 ,299,547 $ 67,977,524 $ 67,065,372 $ 63,195,667 $ 59,562,196 $ 52,106,845 $ - $ - $ 

Primary government 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 141 ,785,972 $ 111,673,655 $ 97,380,327 $ 75,944,230 $ 78,715,136 $ 86,101 ,182 $ 75,845,022 $ - $ - $ 
Restricted 9,875,230 32,110,423 37,879,825 55,808,125 35,402,564 17,596,122 23,990,355 

Unrestricted 19,117,940 18,927,739 18,849,916 18,764,877 19,326,253 19,700,391 13,721,843 
Total primary government net assets $ 170,779,142 $ 162,711,817 $ 154,110,068 $ 150,517,232 $ 133,443,953 $ 123,397,695 $ 113,557,220 $ - $ - $ 

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 34 in fiscal year 2003, thus 10 years of data is not available. 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-2 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Expenses 
Governmental activities: 

Mayor/Council $ 109,844 $ 117,366 $ 11 1,555 $ 108,366 $ 78,114 $ 74,416 $ 58,378 $ - $ - $ 
Administration 6,707,709 7,384,773 5,523,924 6,040,692 4,908,083 5,757,527 3,583,719 

Finance 1,409,054 1,338,894 1,138,210 1,027,654 954,840 877,537 760,436 
Municipal Court 334,922 312 ,601 298,383 304,492 295,379 254,210 236,201 

Police 8,384,774 7,130,698 7,001,771 6,095,435 6,372,344 6,862,707 5,446,279 

Fire 2,201 ,236 2,242,829 2,207,468 1,889,269 1,144,577 1,530,503 966,400 
Public Works 5,482,571 7,094,068 6,928,067 5,530,219 4,753,190 6,155,726 3,961 ,797 
Community Development 1,350,023 2,229,753 2,018,363 1,781 ,548 1,680,857 1,493,249 442,470 
Parks and Recreation 5,250,506 4,025,927 3,088,750 2,583,547 2,329,095 2,323,558 1,487,036 

Interest on long-term debt 4,669,459 4,418,519 3,612,523 2,179,950 1,136,584 1,277,825 1,244,127 

Total governmental activities expenses 35,900,098 36,295,428 31,929,014 27,541,1 72 23,653,063 26,607,258 18,186,843 

Business-type activities: 
Water and Sewer 13,272,884 12,206,742 10,917,707 10,253,226 8,777,277 7,061 ,272 6,436,878 

Total business-type activities expenses 13,272,884 12,206,742 10,917,707 10,253,226 8,777,277 7,061 ,272 6,436,878 

Total primary government expenses $ 49,172,982 $ 48 ,502,170 $ 42,846,721 $ 37,794,398 $ 32,430,340 $ 33 ,668,530 $ 24,623,721 $ - $ - $ 

Program Revenues 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services: $ - $ - $ 
Community Development 1,020,979 1,072,444 1,118,001 1,318,516 1,687,141 1,680,531 1,487,000 

Municipal Court 1,082,488 974,973 989,677 883,228 917,610 928,470 730,753 

Police 516,591 658,015 415,637 649,261 720,395 402,980 221,076 
Other 667,091 1,252,838 1,275,491 1,771 ,297 1,012 ,518 894,130 492,282 

Operating grants & contributions 81,199 151,741 1,059,602 783,317 894,114 1,424,824 772,911 
Capital grants & contributions 8,127,487 6,620,540 3,193,554 11 ,804,857 5,893,301 6,624,160 181,426 

Total governmental activities program revenues 11,495,835 10,730,551 8,051 ,962 17,210,476 11 ,125,079 11 ,955,095 3,885,448 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-2 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(unaudited) 
Fiscal Year 

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
Business-type activities: 

Charges for services: 

Water Sales 6,574,110 6,060,043 4,815,631 6,547,846 5,379,382 4,474,069 4,530,970 

Sewer Charges 2,748 ,160 2,409,614 2,338,820 2,355,821 2,046,425 1,922,989 1,809,478 

Other 1,951,945 1,797,390 1,616,873 2,164,135 2,072,748 1,890,686 1,797,588 

Opera ling granls & contribulions 
Capital grants & contributions 3,374,321 5,616,869 2,808,528 4,319,065 3,411 ,639 6,576,943 2,906,811 

Total business-type activities program revenues 14,648,536 15,883,916 11 ,579,852 15,386,867 12,910,194 14,864,687 11 ,044,847 

Total primary government program revenues $ 26,144,371 $ 26,614,467 $ 19,631,814 $ 32,597,343 $ 24,035,273 $ 26,819,782 $ 14,930,295 $ - $ - $ 

Net (Expense)/Revenue 
Governmental activities (24,404,263) (25,564,877) (23,877,052) (10,330,696) (12,527,984) (14,652,163) (14,301 ,395) 

Business-type activities 1,375,652 3,677,174 662,145 5,133,641 4,132,917 7,803,415 4,607,969 

Total primary government net expense (23,028 ,611) (21,887,703) (23,214,907) (5,197,055) (8,395,067) (6,848,748) (9,693,426) 

General Revenues and Transfers 
Governmental activities: 

Property taxes $ 16,422,119 $ 14,780,112 $ 11 ,827,931 $ 9,063,530 $ 8,111,715 $ 7,265,947 $ 6,717,883 $ - $ - $ 

Sales taxes 10,264,401 10,123,636 8,901 ,929 8,529,051 7,379,841 6,736,054 6,277,216 

Other 3,734,068 4,625,450 4,477,541 3,566,689 2,442,815 2,167,786 1,843,906 

Transfers 6,201,291 1,315,405 1,350,335 2,375,000 1,006,400 867,500 1,337,963 

Total governmental activities 36,621,879 30,844,603 26,557,736 23,534,270 18,940,771 17,037,287 16,176,968 

Business-type activities: 
Other 675,348 960,254 1,600,342 1,111,064 506,954 519,436 345,017 

Transfers (6,201,291) (1,315,405) (1,350,335) (2,375,000) (1,006,400) (867,500) (1,337,963) 

Total business-type activities (5,525,943) ..... (355,151) 250,007 (1 ,263,936L _ .. (499,446) (348,064) (992,946) 

Total primary government $ 31 ,095,936 $ 30,489,452 $ 26,807,743 $ 22,270,334 $ 18,441 ,325 $ 16,689,223 $ 15,184,022 $ - $ - $ 

Change in Net Assets 
Governmental activities $ 12,217,616 $ 5,279,726 $ 2,680,684 $ 13,203,574 $ 6,412,787 $ 2,385,124 $ 1,875,573 $ $ $ 
Business-type activities (4,150,291) 3,322,023 912,152 3,869,705 3,633,471 7,455,351 3,615,023 
Total primary government $ 8,067,325 $ 8,601,749 $ 3,592,836 $ 17,073,279 $ 10,046,258 $ 9,840,475 $ 5,490,596 $ $ $ 

Nole: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 34 in fiscal year 2003, thus 10 years of data is not available. 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-3 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

(unaudited) 

Sales 
Fiscal Year Property Tax Tax Franchise Tax Total 

2000 

2001 

2002 

2003 6,717,883 6,277,216 1,567,874 14,562,973 

2004 7,265,947 6,736,054 1,776,406 15,778,407 

2005 8,111 ,715 7,379,841 1,765,509 17,257,065 

2006 9,063,530 8,529,051 2,111 ,798 19,704,379 

2007 11 ,827,931 8,901,929 2,014,845 22,744,705 

2008 14,780,112 10,123,636 2,421 ,094 27,324,842 

2009 16,422,119 10,264,401 2,535,846 29,222,366 

Nole: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 34 in fiscal year 2003, thus 10 years of data is not available. 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES REVENUES BY SOURCE 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(unaudited) 

Sewer 
Fiscal Year Water Sales Charges Total 

1999 3,252,453 1,260,397 4,512,850 

2000 3,612,008 1,379,684 4,991,692 

2001 3,835,507 1,601,062 5,436,569 

2002 3,913,496 1,770,522 5,684,018 

2003 4,530,970 1,809,478 6,340,448 

2004 4,474,069 1,922 ,989 6,397,058 

2005 5,379,382 2,046,425 7,425,807 

2006 6,547,846 2,355,821 8,903,667 

2007 4,815,631 2,338,820 7,154,451 

2008 6,060,043 2,409,614 8,469,657 

2009 6,574,110 2,748,160 9,322,270 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE D-5 
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) Fiscal Year 

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 
General Fund 

Reserved $ 2,870 $ 2,446 $ 1,407 $ 26,130 $ 26,980 $ 16,104 $ 7,500 $ 6,862 $ 16,414 $ 11 ,663 
Unreserved 8,293,107 8,264,368 8,335,289 7,692,662 7 ,301 ,334 6 ,860,155 7 ,235,979 7,579,095 6,436,530 6,770,275 

Total general rund $ 8,295,977 $ 8,266,814 $ 8,336,696 $ 7,718,792 $ 7,328,314 $ 6 ,876,259 $ 7 ,243,479 $ 7,585,957 $ 6,452,944 $ 6,781 ,938 

All other governmental funds 
Reserved for: 
Debt Service $ 1,077 ,236 $ 835,203 $ 1,083,320 $ 1,461 ,294 $ 1,155,897 $ 694,758 $ 683,650 $ 551 ,753 $ 509,255 $ 386,149 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Special revenue funds 2,399,605 3,145,275 2,797,330 2,422,376 2,046,410 1,358,357 926,507 671 ,382 1,171,009 5,120,309 

Capital projects funds 16906340 13.094.614 21 .877.706 36,529,256 16,11 3,095 5,271 ,300 7.540.907 9.031.865 13.065.344 16.135.737 
Total all other governmental funds 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE D-6 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Revenues 
Ad valorem taxes, penalty and interest $ 16,407,575 $ 14,708,142 $ 11 ,820,994 $ 8,979,948 $ 8,140,125 $ 7,270,408 $ 6,678,166 $ 5,722,744 $ 5,032,885 $ 4,072,641 
Sales taxes 10,264,401 10,123,637 8,901 ,929 8,529,051 7,379,841 6,736,054 6,277,216 6,228,716 6,109,463 7,726,450 
Franchise taxes 2,444,296 2,179,847 2,046,674 1,981 ,016 1,715,242 1,702,156 1,548,499 1,506,971 1,278,671 1,034,660 
Charges for services 738,146 362,107 417,049 426,996 268,125 266,450 263,349 159,451 135,417 108,441 
Permits 1,005,541 1,122,505 1,132,985 1,325,832 1,718,218 1,709,832 1,521 ,019 1,467,736 618,405 570,932 
Municipal court 1,056,904 1,177,410 1,019,260 987,066 906,634 937,164 734,500 584,171 509,645 472,921 
Intergovernmental 428,747 419,700 1,097,790 1,011,739 3,182,350 1,772,811 1,100,961 1,452,565 1,155,484 1,891 ,965 
Interest income 611,615 1,702,870 2,012,244 1,149,204 304,644 143,269 312,700 598,483 1,002,624 1,569,214 
Miscellaneous 872,988 837,707 716,896 1,060,866 1,080,366 755,733 422,427 375,753 297,490 584,386 
Contributions and donations 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Mayor/council 109,845 117,366 111 ,555 108,366 78,114 74,416 58,377 68,480 38,068 31,148 
Administration 3,358,705 3,056,885 2,750,197 2,910,478 2,708,948 2,324,516 3,024,304 2,421 ,992 1,880,816 1,348,888 

Finance 1,266,436 1,199,417 1,138,238 1,025,230 952,808 837,800 756,688 707,823 615,694 515,463 

Municipal court 318,467 311,706 300,186 303,131 291,348 249,839 234,832 189,088 187,687 163,977 
Police 7,775,622 6,923,679 6,426,957 6,235,463 6,070,311 6,083,676 5,171 ,682 5,024,188 4,261 ,907 3,770,329 
Fire 1,618,559 1,451 ,970 1,340,624 1,242,836 1,075,427 950,622 757,447 373,099 336,556 267,251 
Public works 1,528,010 2,824,267 2,427,535 2,411,324 2,050,077 2,005,360 1,781 ,760 1,648,599 1,393,969 1,278,762 
Community development 1,258,030 2,219,167 2,002,767 1,783,961 1,682,480 1,477,483 440,481 302,156 391,843 954,429 
Parks and recreation 4,493,524 2,907,229 2,473,238 2,318,135 1,826,608 1,758,180 1,369,986 1,322,614 
Total current 

Capital outlay: 
Administration 18,427,890 2,373,369 4,028,933 1,580,706 602,847 623,526 1,843,858 8,767,869 3,101 ,580 4,596,796 

Finance 78,866 137,035 36,746 141 ,102 104,138 66,898 88,238 
Municipal Court 3,958 13,152 11,705 
Police 258,623 74,899 225,992 285,150 1,850,771 978,179 372,661 370,552 298,869 880,517 
Fire 6,462,691 727,795 1,578,623 835,685 711,166 525,888 172,970 542,049 1,322,965 750,226 
Public works 90,798 29,051,639 10,609,516 25,733,888 9,756,038 1,667,682 1,198,999 892,865 1,306,605 108,831 
Community development 2,105 519 668 1,123 97,479 60,738 
Parks and recreation 482,177 1,742,004 2,397,348 1,477,499 757,360 600,049 443,049 199,661 646,525 239,448 
Total capital outlay 25,801,045 34,106,741 18,842,517 29,912,928 13,678,701 4,436,696 4,186,914 10,877,134 6,840,921 6,736,499 

-128-



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE D-6 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Debt service: 
Principal 4,670,540 4,335,462 3,726,505 2,620,235 1,801 ,369 2,831 ,984 1,623,841 1,590,000 1,196,321 780,188 
Interest 4,716,545 4,254,162 3,607,455 1,748,001 977,878 1,032,504 1,229,093 1,198,065 1,305,721 1,438,232 
Bond issuance costs 242,173 468,837 9,500 500,889 429,728 99,311 50,879 
Fiscal charges 15,284 6,384 6,484 6,020 5,063 7,403 9,272 14,580 10,380 6,968 

Total debt services 9,644,542 9,064,845 7,349,944 4,875,145 3,214,038 3,971,202 2,862,206 2,853,524 2,512,422 2,225,388 

Total expenditures 57,172,785 64,183,272 45,163,758 53,126,997 33,628,860 24,169,790 20,644,677 25,788,697 19,490,119 18,154,369 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (20,530,115) (30,773,652) (1 3,756,351) (21,423,844) (8,769,680) (2,623,876) (1 ,729,377) (7,656,995) (3,289,496) 121 ,835 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 8,664,757 1,975,436 2,585,804 4,305,332 2,959,535 2,429,909 4,445,973 4,976,111 2,942,643 2,815,824 

Sale of capital assets 
Transfers out (4,488,966) (2,715,031) (2,866,119) (3,478,832) (3,416,135) (2,812,409) (4,163,010) (4,971 ,711 ) (2,996,182) (3,055,824) 

Bonds issued 19,295,000 22,270,000 41 ,045,000 21 ,200,000 4,295,000 8,650,000 

Refunding bonds issued 4,805,000 6,095,000 4,067,415 

Accrued interest on bonds issued 176,020 129,913 
Premium (discounts) on bonds issued 444,623 490,101 864,326 271,518 

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (4,853,047) (6,027,109) (3,120,178) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 23,867,367 22,020,506 (280,315) _ 4~911 ,846 21 ,212,722 564,737 282,963 4,299,400 (53,539) 8,410,000 

Net change in fund balances 3,337,252 (8,753,146) (14,036,666) 21,488,002 12,443,042 (2,059,139) (1 ,446,414) (3,357,595) (3,343,035) 8,531,835 

Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapital expenditures 30.6% 24.0% 22.0% 17.4% 13.5% 14.4% 18.1%, 19.1% 19.9% 19.5% 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE D-7 
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Sales 
Fiscal Year Property Tax Tax Franchise Tax Total 

2000 4,072,641 7,726,450 1,034,660 12,833,751 

2001 5,032,885 6,109,463 1,278,671 12,421,019 

2002 5,722,744 6,228,716 1,506,971 13,458,431 

2003 6,678 ,166 6,277,216 1,548,499 14,503,881 

2004 7,270,408 6,736,054 1,702,156 15,708,618 

2005 8,140,125 7,379,841 1,715,242 17,235,208 

2006 8,979,948 8,529,051 1,981,016 19,490,015 

2007 11,820,994 8,901 ,929 2,046,674 22,769,597 

2008 14,708,142 10,123,637 2,179,847 27,011 ,626 

2009 16,407,575 10,264,401 2,444,296 29,116,272 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL TABLE 0-8 
SALES TAX COLLECTIONS AS COMPARED TO TAX LEVY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Total Percent of Equivalent of 
Sales Tax Ad Valorem Ad Valorem 

Fiscal Year Collections Tax Levy Tax Rate 

2000 5,834,244 143.91% 0.52 

2001 6 ,109,463 124.62% 0.45 

2002 6 ,228,716 108.84% 0.39 

2003 6,277,216 94.00% 0.34 

2004 6 ,736,054 94.08% 0.34 

2005 7,379,841 91 .93% 0.33 

2006 8,286,316 92.22% 0.34 

2007 8,901 ,929 76.73% 0.35 

2008 10,123,637 70.44% 0.36 

2009 10,264,401 64.13% 0.34 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-9 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Estimated Market Value 
Fiscal Real Property Real Property Non-Real Less: Total Taxable Assessed Total Direct 
Year Tax Year Residential Non-Residential Property Personal Tax Exempt Property Value Tax Rate 

2000 1999 713,080,370 313,108,302 161 ,240,698 65,713,842 1,121,715,528 0.3600 

2001 2000 879,924,785 370,271 ,592 201 ,150,402 86,564,864 1,364,781 ,915 0.3600 

2002 2001 1,005,596,905 434,430,607 231 ,005,372 92,155,332 1,578,877,552 0.3600 

2003 2002 1,180,867,660 484,847,529 271 ,117,946 99,943,555 1,836,889,580 0.3600 

2004 2003 1,371,585,380 487,360,218 258,028,313 130,750,657 1,986,223,254 0.3600 

2005 2004 1,573,206,290 525,794,698 284,849,415 154,608 ,703 2,229,241 ,700 0 .3600 

2006 2005 1,736,808,885 567,435,458 286,808,498 163,343,787 2,427,709,054 0.3689 

2007 2006 1,943,727,690 921 ,234,223 261 ,957,560 551 ,589,203 2,575,330,270 0.4250 

2008 2007 2,405,432,149 709,899,929 289,545,141 602,975,668 2 ,801 ,901,551 0.4865 

2009 2008 2,147,701 ,430 1,155,846,969 330,037,398 625 ,065,569 3,008,520,228 0.5031 

Source: Rockwall Central Appraisal District 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL TABLE 0-10 
PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Over 65 and Disabled Prorated Total 
Fiscal Year Disabled Veterns Agriculture Abatement Exempt 

2000 27,511,159 759,504 34,508,640 7,041 ,464 26,250 

2001 28,201,159 783,004 34,719,380 8,600,537 26,250 

2002 31,135,770 938,984 47,080,860 7,031 ,665 

2003 32 ,005,770 949,484 48,516,530 7,025,287 71 ,939 

2004 69,074,650 1,067,984 44,198,700 10,670,039 338,011 

2005 77,182,580 1,233,504 52,695,448 10,658,736 1,587,746 

2006 87,691,150 1,495,504 50,548,990 18,883,658 1,100,093 

2007 96,624,100 1,537,004 61,259,470 16,146,371 328,999 

2008 104,805,677 1,658,500 66,881,780 13,651,705 248,013 

2009 111,535,268 1,805,500 79,131 ,370 24,266,824 2,147,724 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-11 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 

(PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(unaudited) 

City of Rockwall Overlapping Rates 
Fiscal Year M&O Debt Total School County 

1999 0.2179 0.1421 0 .3600 1.4900 0.3202 

2000 0.1898 0.1702 0.3600 1.5780 0.3536 

2001 0.1748 0.1852 0.3600 1.8400 0.3534 

2002 0.1826 0.1774 0.3600 1.8372 0.3534 

2003 0 .1982 0.1618 0.3600 1.8800 0 .3534 

2004 0.2099 0.1501 0.3600 1.8800 0.3507 

2005 0.2239 0.1361 0.3600 1.8800 0.3507 

2006 0.2167 0 .1522 0 .3689 1.8800 0.3506 

2007 0.2067 0.2183 0.425 1.7100 0.3507 

2008 0.2243 0.2622 0.4865 1.4700 0.3500 

2009 0.2270 0 .2761 0.5031 1.4700 0.3750 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-12 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(unaudited) 

2009 2000 
Percentage of 
Total Taxable Percentage of Total 

Taxable Assessed Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable Assessed 
Taxpayer Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation 

CNLRS Rockwall, LP 49,246,880 1.76% 

Conlinenlal Pet Technology 40,604,530 2 1.45% 19,831 ,801 1 1.76% 

Rockwall Regional Hospital , LLP 36,873,290 3 1.32% 

Mariah Bay Developmenl, Inc 31 ,915,280 4 1.14% 

On cor Electric Delivery Service 23,337,850 5 0.83% 10,628,510 6 0.94% 

Rockwall Crossing LTD 23,069,615 6 0.82% 

Wal-mart 22,081 ,420 7 0.79% 16,303,431 2 1.45% 

SPMIWRI Rockwall , L.P. 20,500,000 8 0.73% 15,027,200 3 1.34% 

Rockwall Hotel & Conference Group 19,167,110 9 0.68% 

Texas Star Express 18,872 ,090 10 0.67% 

Lowes Home Centers, Inc. 14,147,116 4 1.26% 

Rockwall! S-30 Ltd . 12,104,170 5 1.08% 

Steger Towne Crossing, LP 10,158,450 7 0.90% 

Dayton Hudson 9,402 .800 8 0.84% 

Kohl's Department Stores , Inc. 9,183,280 9 0.82% 

Bent Tree Realty Co. 9,144 ,820 10 0.81% 

Subtolal 236,421 ,185 8.44% 125,931 ,578 11 .19% 

Total Taxable Value 2,801 ,901 ,551 100.00% 1,125,145,000 100.00% 

Source: Rockwall Central Appraisal District 
Note: For lax years 2008 and 1999 
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Fiscal Tax Total Tax 
Year Year Levy 

1999 1998 3,403,144 

2000 1999 4,054,089 

2001 2000 4,915,155 

2002 2001 5,696,005 

2003 2002 6,619,325 

2004 2003 7,194,520 

2005 2004 8,063,888 

2006 2005 8,984,907 

2007 2006 11,602,218 

2008 2007 14,371 ,045 

2009 2008 16,005,417 

, 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(unaudited) 

Percent of Levy Delinquent 
Current Tax Total Current Collected During Tax 
Collections Year Collections Fiscal Period Collections 

3,314,812 3,314,812 97.40% 90,041 

3,937,051 3,937,051 97.11 % 90,041 

4,864,930 4,864,930 98 .98% 110,627 

5,605,385 5,605,385 98.41 % 55,841 

6,487,602 6,487,602 98.01 % 77,090 

7,145,433 7,145,433 99.32% 176,253 

8,021 ,945 8,021,945 99.48% 141 ,227 

8,921,613 8,921 ,613 99.30% 114,598 

11,433,285 11,433,285 98.54% 112,247 

14,173,725 14,173,725 98.63% 139,450 

15,923,847 15,923,847 99.49% 269,545 

-136-

TABLE D-13 

Ratio of Total Tax 
Total Tax Collections to Tax 

Collections Levy 

3,404,853 100.05% 

4,027,092 99,33% 

4,975,557 101 .23% 

5,661,226 99.39% 

6,564,692 99.17% 

7,321 ,686 101 .77% 

8,163,172 101 .23% 

9,036,211 100,57% 

11 ,545,532 99.51% 

14,313,175 99.60% 

16,193,392 101 .17% 



CITY OF ROCKWALL TABLE D-14 
TOP TEN WATER CUSTOMERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(unaudited) 

2009 2000 
Percentage of Total Percentage of Total 

Customer Water Usage Rank Water Usage Water Usage Rank Water Usage 

City of Rockwall 61,481,900 2.05% 11,103,600 9 0.55% 

Rockwall I.S.D. 33,372,600 2 1.11 % 30,102,000 2 1.50% 

Whittle Development 23,317,400 3 0.78% 

D.W.C.lHighlife Properties 17,269,800 4 0.58% 19,616,500 5 0.98% 

Mission Rockwall 15,450,700 5 0.51 % 21,429,500 4 1.07% 

Walden Residenlial Properties 13,288,600 6 0.44% 21,581,400 3 1.08% 

Rockwall Crossing , Ltd. 11,000,700 7 0.37% 

Rockwall Nursing Home 10,816,300 8 0.36% 

Lake Pointe Church 10,710,400 9 0.36% 

Continental Can 9,366,600 10 0.31% 12,061,400 8 0.60% 

Lone Star Circuits 31 ,047,100 1.55% 

Steger Towne Crossing 16,043,600 6 0.80% 

Sabre Realty 13,667,000 7 0.68% 

Bent Creek Condos, HOA 9,257,100 10 0.46% 

Subtotal 206,075,000 6.86% 185,909,200 9.28% 

Total Water Usage 3,003,234,960 100.00% 2,003,102,000 100.00% 

-137-



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-15 
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Governmental Activities Business-Txpe Activities 

General General Capitalized Percentage 
Fiscal Obligation Certificates Contractual Obligation Certificates Contractual Water and Sewer Lease Total Primary of Personal 
Year Bonds of Obligation Obligations Bonds of Obligation Obligations --- Revenue Bonds Obligations Government Income Per Capita 

2000 14,809,306 6,500,000 1,725,245 610,694 119,755 4,815,936 3,185,000 31,765,936 5.69% 1,863 

2001 14,088,900 6,375,000 1,374,329 506,100 60,644 4,563,753 2,840,000 29,808,726 5.53% 1,574 

2002 13,295,364 10,485,000 945,000 384,636 10,991,569 2,505,000 38,606,569 6.54% 1,841 

2003 12,521,523 9,890,000 690,000 288,477 10,555,000 2,150,000 36,095,000 5.60% 1,580 

2004 11,918,933 9,075,000 420,000 271,067 10,035,000 1,780,000 33,500,000 4.07% 1,329 

2005 22,992,564 17,940,000 345,000 247,436 14,910,000 1,385,000 57,820,000 6.22% 2,080 

2006 57,632,329 21,825,000 315,000 212,671 14,1 45,000 1,145,000 95,275,000 9.57% 3,155 

2007 55,720,824 20,045,000 280,000 184,176 13,360,000 5,040,094 94,630,094 8.87% 3,013 

2008 74,925,362 18,810,000 245,000 154,638 9,935,000 12,530,000 4,805,090 121,405,090 11 .18% 3,824 

2009 86,179,822 22,425,000 135,178 25,890,000 11,670,000 7,431,754 153,731,754 14.29% 4,789 

Note: See Table 19 for personal income and population data 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-16 
RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Governmental Activities 
General Less : Debt Percentage of 

Obligation Certificates Contractual Gross Bonded Service Fund Actual Taxable 
Fiscal Year Bonds of Obligation Obligations Debt Balance Net Bonded Debt Value Per Capita 

1999 13,094,712 1,990,449 15,085,161 284,139 14,801 ,022 1.56% 919 

2000 14,809,306 6,500,000 1,725,245 23,034,551 386,149 22,648,402 2.01% 1,328 

2001 14,088,900 6,375,000 1,374,329 21,838,229 509,255 21,328,974 1.58% 1,126 

2002 13,295,364 10,485,000 945,000 24,725,364 551,753 24,173,611 1.52% 1,153 

2003 12,521,523 9,890,000 690,000 23,101 ,523 683,650 22,417,873 1.21 % 981 

2004 11,918,933 9,075,000 420,000 21,413 ,933 694,758 20,719,175 1.04% 822 

2005 22,992,564 17,940,000 345,000 41,277,564 1,014,713 40,262,851 1.80% 1,448 

2006 57,632,329 21 ,825,000 315,000 79,772,329 1,461,294 78,311,035 3.22% 2,593 

2007 55,720,824 20,045,000 280,000 76,045,824 1,083,320 74,962,504 2.91 % 2,387 

2008 74,925,362 18,810,000 245,000 93,980,362 835,203 93,145,159 3.32% 2,934 

2009 86,179,822 22,425,000 108,604,822 1,077,236 107,527,586 3.57% 3,349 

Note: See Table 19 for population data and Table 8 for property value data 
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Direct: 

City of Rockwall 

Indirect: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2009 

Jurisdiction 

(unaudited) 
Net General 

Obligation Bonded 
Debt Outstanding 

(1) 

$ 134.630.000 

Percentage 
Applicable to 

the City of 
Rockwall 

100.00% 

Rockwall Independent School District 349,963,101 57 .86% 

Rockwall County 60,060,000 48.89% 

Total Indirect 410.023,101 

Total Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debl $ 544.653,101 

Average debt per capita 

Amounts 
Applicable to Ihe 
City of Rockwall 

$ 134.630,000 

202,488 .650 

29.363.334 

231 .851 ,984 

$ 366.481.984 

11,416 

(1) Indudes all General Obligation Bonds, Contractual Obligations, and Certificates of Obligation of the primary government. 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

TABLE 0-18 

The City of Rockwall, Texas does not have a legal debt limit prescribed by state law. However, Article XI , Section 5 of the Texas 

Constitution applicable to cities of more than 5,000 population limits ad valorem tax rates to $2.50 per $100 assessed valuation for 

cities operating under a Home Rule Charter. Accordingly, the City's tax margin for the previous ten years was: 

Fiscal Year 
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Maximum Rate 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 

Total Tax Rate 0.5031 0.4865 0.425 0.3689 0.3600 0.3600 0.3600 0.3600 0.3600 0.3600 

Legal Debt Margin 1.9969 2.0135 2.0750 2.1311 2.1400 2.1400 2.1400 . 2.1400 2.1400 2.1400 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE - WATER AND SEWER BONDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

TABLE 0-19 

Annual Revenue Debt Service Requirements 
Direct Net Revenue 

Fiscal Operating Available for Debt 
Year Total Revenues Expense Service Principal Interest Total Coverage 

2000 9,225,111 3,068,964 6, 156,147 255,000 242,228 497,228 12.38 

2001 10,253,437 3,773,301 6,480,136 260,000 227,663 487,663 13.29 

2002 7,785,753 4 ,159,459 3,626,294 280,000 213,638 493,638 7.35 

2003 9,259,528 4,647,959 4 ,611,569 510,000 486,884 996,884 4 .63 

2004 10,081 ,442 5,194,575 4,886,867 520,000 476,1 08 996,108 4.91 

2005 11,447,810 6 ,817,094 4 ,630,716 550,000 453,305 1,003,305 4 .62 

2006 12,921 ,162 8,229,674 4,691,488 765,000 635,235 1,400,235 3.35 

2007 10,970,532 8,405,774 2,564,758 785,000 606,179 1,391,179 1.84 

2008 11 ,638,576 9,308 ,603 2,329,973 830,000 575,410 1,405,410 1.66 

2009 12,706,804 9,516,940 3,189,864 860,000 542,595 1,402,595 2.27 

Note: Direct operating expenses excludes depreciation 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN YEARS 
(unaudited) 

DEMOGRAPHICS 
Personal Income Per Capita 

(thousands of Personal RISD School 
Fiscal Year Population dollars I Income (1) Enrollment (2) 

2000 17,050 558,064 32 ,731 8,435 

2001 18,934 539.278 28,482 8.898 

2002 20,967 590,473 28,162 9,617 

2003 22.850 644.256 28,195 10.077 

2004 25,200 822,453 32,637 10,527 

2005 27,800 929.882 33,449 11 ,560 

2006 30,200 995,574 32 ,966 12,627 

2007 31 ,407 1,066,362 33,953 13.086 

2008 31 .748 1.085.718 34.198 13,407 

2009 32,103 1.075,900 33,514 13.721 

Source: (1) Rockwall Economic Development Corporation 
(2) Rockwall Independent School District - private schools not included 
(3) Texas Workforce Commission 
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TABLE 0-20 

Unemployment 
Rate ('!o) (3) 

3.0 

5.5 

7.1 

6.7 

5.1 

3.5 

3,4 

3.9 

4.9 

7.0 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

Employer Employees 

Rockwall Independenl School District 1,667 

Texas Star Express 484 

Wal-Mart Superstore 450 

Presbyterian Hospital 419 

Rockwall County 253 

City of Rockwall 256 

Special Products 205 

Target 200 

Rockwall Nursing Home 160 

Kohl's Department Store 140 

Precision Cable 

James Helwig & Son 

Continental Pet 

Subtotal 4,234 

Total 17,081 

Sources: Rockwall Economic Development Corporation 
North Central Texas Council of Governments 
Texas Workforce Commission 

(unaudited) 

2009 
Percentage of 

Total City 
Rank Employment 

9.76% 

2 2.83% 

3 2.63% 

4 2.45% 

5 1.48% 

6 1.50% 

7 1.20% 

8 1.17% 

9 0.94% 

10 0.82% 

24.79% 

100.00% 
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TABLE 0-21 

2000 
Percentage of 

Total City 
Employees Rank Employment 

1200 12.38% 

200 6 2.06% 

500 2 5.16% 

140 7 1.44% 

135 10 1.39% 

140 9 1.44% 

140 8 1.44% 

200 4 2.06% 

200 5 2.06% 

225 3 2.32% 

3,080 31 .78% 

9,692 100.00% 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-22 
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Administration 22 22 22 21 21 21 23 19 13 12 

Finance 8 8 8 8 7.5 6.5 4.5 4.5 5 5 

Municipal Court 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 

Fire 17 10 10 9 9 8 5 4 3 2 

Police 90.5 88 85 80 72 70 68 63 57 53 

Community Development 29.5 29.5 29.5 28.5 25.5 22 21 19 14 15 

Parks & Recrealion 26 24.5 24.5 25 24 21 21 22 18 16 

Public Works 21 23 23 23 21 21 21 20 19 19.5 

WalerlSewer 38 34 31 29 26 25 23 22 21 20 

Total 256.00 243.00 237.00 227.50 210.00 197.50 189.50 176.50 153.00 145.50 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE 0-23 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
Function 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Finance 
I nvoices processed 16,933 16,696 16,015 15,883 14,919 14,246 14,430 nla nla nla 
Payroll checks issued 8,176 7,765 7,840 7,042 6,579 6,543 5,882 4,983 4,277 4,196 
Purchase orders issued 2,572 2,363 2,553 2 ,468 2,561 2,420 2,338 nla nla nla 

Municipal Court 
Violations Processed 16,526 12,984 17,455 16,635 15,225 13,913 15,000 9,364 8,010 7,173 

Fire 
Employees (paid) 16 9 9 9 9 8 4 3 2 
Volunteers 35 42 37 40 39 36 38 38 36 37 
Fire Calls (City and County) 771 860 777 718 772 623 560 474 460 425 

Police 
Employees (uniformed) 70 69 66 61 55 51 49 42 37 36 

Employees (civilian) 20 19 18 18 17 17 15 12 12 12 
Calls for Service 30,610 29,097 27,158 21,121 17,915 16,066 14,699 14,717 13,924 14,633 

Community Development 
# permits - New commercial construction 17 26 33 18 51 18 27 22 13 26 
Value - New commercial construction 71 ,061 ,773 40,553,363 104,798,013 39,358,497 49,918,558 29,067,960 40,304,701 41 ,967,125 16,001,068 12,444,115 

# permits - New residential construction 169 173 192 470 739 885 775 945 767 655 
Value - New res idential construction 30,914,120 31,962,169 40,174,623 82,305,725 123,215,423 135,501,919 117,512,216 144,002,845 119,521 ,248 94,343,746 

Parks & Recreation 
The Center facility usage 61 ,713 76,530 69,988 75,757 71,118 58,060 38,821 2,71 3 nla nla 

Special event attendance 90,680 75,232 54,156 25,231 26,547 35,736 14,300 9,113 5,440 nla 

# recreation participants (youth & adult) 2,155 2,757 2,727 2,381 2,034 1,793 1,411 882 1,028 nla 
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CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
Function 2009 2008 2007 

Public Works 
Streets - sq yd concrete street repair 5,507.20 3,415.26 739.69 
$ spent on concrete/asphalt street repair 541,430 411 ,814 341,685 
Miles of public street maintained by City 192.86 183.86 144.83 

Water/Sewer 
Water customers 12,471 12,285 12,345 
Sewer customers 11,401 11,106 10,987 
Average daily water consumption (gal) 8,228,041 8,052,778 6,701,619 
Maximum storage capacrty (gal) 12,000,000 9,500,000 7,500,000 

Source: City departments 
Notes: Operating indicators are not available for Mayor/Council and Administration functions. 

nla - Data not available 

2006 2005 2004 

1,967.75 2,961 .55 2,395.76 
478,169 352,048 431 ,475 
139.52 129.23 127.66 

11 ,985 11,491 10,497 
10,445 10,020 9,282 

5,991 ,288 5,023,404 4,327,595 
7,500,000 7,500,000 7,500,000 
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TABLE 0-23 

2003 2002 2001 2000 

nla nla nla nla 
339,507 284,129 242,810 294,895 
122.70 116.03 105.38 98.70 

9,440 8,827 7,875 7,035 
8,510 7,781 7,026 6 ,310 

4,209,473 3,019,976 3,937,395 3,874,655 
5,500,000 5,500,000 5,500,000 5,500,000 



CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS TABLE D-24 
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 
Function 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 

Fire 
Number of stations 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 
Number of fire enginesltrucks 12 11 11 9 8 8 8 8 8 8 

Police 
Number of stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Number of patrol units 42 42 42 42 37 30 26 22 nla nla 

Parks & Recreation 
Parks acres (developed) 538.00 538.00 341 .50 324.60 307.30 287.70 283.20 nla nla nla 
Playgrounds 23 23 23 18 12 12 12 11 10 10 
Picnic areas 31 31 29 27 26 26 25 12 5 5 
Swimming pools 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Public Works 
$ spent on new street construction 15,444,384 24,508,043 4,885,417 1,689,445 2,477,496 165,359 116,368 1,670,734 377,153 nla 
S spent on street rehabilitation 1,446,058 4 ,219,701 2,492,251 6,575,541 2,352,112 583,947 397,026 967,878 1,503,738 nla 
Miles of public street 192.86 183.86 144.83 139.52 129.23 127.66 122.70 116.03 105.38 98.70 

WaterlSewer 
Water mains (miles) 255.88 250.40 160.06 155.37 146.32 139.93 128.49 120.93 105.35 96.43 
Sanitary sewers (miles) 212.77 209.95 117.51 113.58 107.83 103.62 96.64 91 .87 79.21 69.59 

Source: City departments 
Notes: Asset indicators are not availabte for MayorlCouncil, Administration, Finance, Muncipal Court, and Community Development functions. 

nla - data not available 
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